


04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 1 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    10 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 61000 Administration

   61000 Administration

         100 PERSONNEL                                       0.00        -35.00          0.00           0.00         35.00       %

         111 BOD Stipend                                   500.00      3,800.00      8,000.00       8,000.00      4,200.00    48 %

         180 Tuition Reimbursment Program                    0.00          0.00      2,000.00       2,000.00      2,000.00       %

         205 Insurance - Health                          1,052.92      1,052.92          0.00           0.00     -1,052.92       %

         320 Printing and reproduction                       0.00        173.58      1,020.00       1,020.00        846.42    17 %

         324 Professional Svcs- Consulting                   0.00          0.00     15,500.00      15,500.00     15,500.00       %

         327 Professional svcs - Legal                       0.00     37,030.00     17,000.00      17,000.00    -20,030.00   218 %

         340 Meetings and conferences                        0.00          0.00      9,500.00       9,500.00      9,500.00       %

         345 Mileage expense reimbursement                   0.00          0.00        650.00         650.00        650.00       %

         375 Internet expenses                               0.00          0.00        300.00         300.00        300.00       %

         376 Webpage- Upgrade/Maint                          0.00          0.00      6,352.00       6,352.00      6,352.00       %

         385 Dues and subscriptions                          0.00          0.00      5,000.00       5,000.00      5,000.00       %

         386 Education and training                          0.00        439.00      1,250.00       1,250.00        811.00    35 %

         393 Advertising and public notices                  0.00        155.25        300.00         300.00        144.75    52 %

         395 Community Outreach                              0.00          0.00      5,000.00       5,000.00      5,000.00       %

         405 Software                                        0.00          0.00      5,000.00       5,000.00      5,000.00       %

         410 Office Supplies                                 0.00        801.72          0.00           0.00       -801.72       %

         415 Office Equipment                                0.00          0.00      3,000.00       3,000.00      3,000.00       %

         495 Uniform expense                                 0.00        607.19          0.00           0.00       -607.19       %

         715 Licenses, permits and fees                     32.80         32.80          0.00           0.00        -32.80       %

         900 Misc                                            0.00         93.96          0.00           0.00        -93.96       %

         908 Cash Over/ Cash Short                           0.00         -1.00          0.00           0.00          1.00       %

         911 Finance Charges/Late Fees                       0.00          1.19          0.00           0.00         -1.19       %

         925 Bank service charges                            0.00        330.11          0.00           0.00       -330.11       %

                      Account Total:                     1,585.72     44,481.72     79,872.00      79,872.00     35,390.28    56 %

                Account Group Total:                     1,585.72     44,481.72     79,872.00      79,872.00     35,390.28    56 %

 70000 Transfer Out

   70000 Transfer Out

         905 Transfer out                                    0.00    -20,755.18          0.00           0.00     20,755.18       %

                      Account Total:                         0.00    -20,755.18          0.00           0.00     20,755.18       %

                Account Group Total:                         0.00    -20,755.18          0.00           0.00     20,755.18       %

                         Fund Total:                     1,585.72     23,726.54     79,872.00      79,872.00     56,145.46    30 %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 2 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    20 FIRE PROTECTIVE SERVICES

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 62000 Fire

   62000 Fire

         105 Salaries and Wages                          3,793.94     32,581.39     46,250.00      46,250.00     13,668.61    70 %

         107 Overtime                                        0.00          0.00        250.00         250.00        250.00       %

         110 Payroll tax expense                             0.00          0.00      6,650.00       6,650.00      6,650.00       %

         115 Payroll Expenses                                0.00        329.46      2,100.00       2,100.00      1,770.54    16 %

         120 Workers' Compensation                           0.00         61.62      5,000.00       5,000.00      4,938.38     1 %

         125 Volunteer firefighter stipends                  0.00     15,801.50     32,000.00      32,000.00     16,198.50    49 %

         126 Strike Team Pay - VFF                           0.00     33,379.32     25,000.00      25,000.00     -8,379.32   134 %

         135 Payroll Tax - FICA                         -3,857.86       -896.18          0.00           0.00        896.18       %

         140 Payroll Tax - Medicare                         54.99      1,180.02          0.00           0.00     -1,180.02       %

         155 Payroll Tax - SUI                             105.21      1,284.47          0.00           0.00     -1,284.47       %

         160 Payroll Tax - ETT                               3.62         62.89          0.00           0.00        -62.89       %

         165 Payroll Tax - FUTA                            203.66      3,122.36          0.00           0.00     -3,122.36       %

         180 Tuition Reimbursment Program                    0.00          0.00      2,000.00       2,000.00      2,000.00       %

         205 Insurance - Health                              0.00        148.56        900.00         900.00        751.44    17 %

         210 Insurance - Dental                              4.28         22.83        200.00         200.00        177.17    11 %

         215 Insurance - Vision                              0.67          3.58         30.00          30.00         26.42    12 %

         225 Retirement - PERS expense                      15.49        894.55        700.00         700.00       -194.55   128 %

         305 Operations and maintenance                      0.00        923.37          0.00           0.00       -923.37       %

         310 Phone and fax expense                          31.40        391.79        560.00         560.00        168.21    70 %

         315 Postage, shipping and freight                 125.00        553.36        200.00         200.00       -353.36   277 %

         320 Printing and reproduction                       0.00          0.00        200.00         200.00        200.00       %

         325 Professional svcs - Accounting                  0.00      4,148.07      1,500.00       1,500.00     -2,648.07   277 %

         326 Professional svcs - Engineering                 0.00        901.00          0.00           0.00       -901.00       %

         327 Professional svcs - Legal                       0.00      1,163.55      3,000.00       3,000.00      1,836.45    39 %

         328 Insurance - prop and liability                  0.00          0.00      8,500.00       8,500.00      8,500.00       %

         335 Meals - Fire                                    0.00         45.85        500.00         500.00        454.15     9 %

         340 Meetings and conferences                        0.00          0.00        700.00         700.00        700.00       %

         345 Mileage expense reimbursement                   0.00          0.00        650.00         650.00        650.00       %

         350 Repairs and maint - computers                   0.00        397.24      1,500.00       1,500.00      1,102.76    26 %

         351 Repairs and maint - equip                     160.40      3,155.48      3,500.00       3,500.00        344.52    90 %

         352 Repairs and maint - structures                  0.00        208.16          0.00           0.00       -208.16       %

         353 Repairs & Maint- Infrastructure                 0.00        377.50          0.00           0.00       -377.50       %

         354 Repairs and maint - vehicles                   91.75      5,174.55      9,000.00       9,000.00      3,825.45    57 %

         355 WW - Testing & Supplies                         0.00        614.99          0.00           0.00       -614.99       %

         370 Dispatch services                               0.00      6,414.10      5,600.00       5,600.00       -814.10   115 %

         375 Internet expenses                               3.20         47.71        270.00         270.00        222.29    18 %

         380 Utilities - alarm service                       0.00         18.00        275.00         275.00        257.00     7 %

         381 Utilities - electric                            0.00      1,116.07      2,150.00       2,150.00      1,033.93    52 %

         382 Utilities - propane                            68.66        164.08        540.00         540.00        375.92    30 %

         385 Dues and subscriptions                          0.00      1,603.00      3,000.00       3,000.00      1,397.00    53 %

         386 Education and training                          0.00        251.00      5,000.00       5,000.00      4,749.00     5 %

         387 Education and training: Training                0.00       -161.89          0.00           0.00        161.89       %

         388 Education and training: CPR/FIRST AID           0.00        260.00          0.00           0.00       -260.00       %

         393 Advertising and public notices               -100.00       -288.70      1,000.00       1,000.00      1,288.70   -29 %

         394 LAFCO Allocations                               0.00          0.00        450.00         450.00        450.00       %

         395 Community Outreach                              0.00        394.62        900.00         900.00        505.38    44 %

         405 Software                                        0.00        578.67      1,500.00       1,500.00        921.33    39 %

         410 Office Supplies                                48.81        344.32          0.00           0.00       -344.32       %

         415 Office Equipment                                0.00         48.26          0.00           0.00        -48.26       %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 3 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    20 FIRE PROTECTIVE SERVICES

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

         440 Vehicle Replacement Fund                        0.00        125.00          0.00           0.00       -125.00       %

         450 EMS supplies                                  149.56      1,643.18      2,550.00       2,550.00        906.82    64 %

         455 Fire Safety Gear & Equipment                   24.27      3,085.57     10,500.00      10,500.00      7,414.43    29 %

         460 Fire equipment                                  0.00         33.96          0.00           0.00        -33.96       %

         465 Cell phones, radios and pagers                -65.61        468.76        660.00         660.00        191.24    71 %

         470 Communication equipment                         0.00      2,963.27     15,000.00      15,000.00     12,036.73    20 %

         475 Computer supplies and upgrades                  0.00         22.00        500.00         500.00        478.00     4 %

         485 Fuel expense                                  564.62      4,244.55      6,500.00       6,500.00      2,255.45    65 %

         490 Small tools and equipment                       0.00        382.95      3,500.00       3,500.00      3,117.05    11 %

         495 Uniform expense                                 0.00      3,113.36      3,000.00       3,000.00       -113.36   104 %

         500 Capital Outlay                                  0.00      3,910.30          0.00           0.00     -3,910.30       %

         503 Weed Abatement Costs                            0.00      2,575.00      2,000.00       2,000.00       -575.00   129 %

         620 Engine Lease - Ferrara (2010)                   0.00          0.00     37,000.00      37,000.00     37,000.00       %

         710 County hazmat dues                              0.00      2,000.00      2,000.00       2,000.00          0.00   100 %

         715 Licenses, permits and fees                     32.80         32.80        750.00         750.00        717.20     4 %

         820 Fireworks Clean Up                              0.00      1,000.00          0.00           0.00     -1,000.00       %

         900 Misc                                            0.00        -40.00          0.00           0.00         40.00       %

         905 Transfer out                                    0.00          0.00     11,801.00      11,801.00     11,801.00       %

         925 Bank service charges                            0.00        776.51          0.00           0.00       -776.51       %

         930 Interest Fees                                   0.00        -23.51          0.00           0.00         23.51       %

         960 Property tax expense                            0.00        418.22        350.00         350.00        -68.22   119 %

         990 Property Tax Revenue                            0.00     -2,861.64          0.00           0.00      2,861.64       %

                      Account Total:                     1,458.86    140,690.80    267,686.00     267,686.00    126,995.20    53 %

                Account Group Total:                     1,458.86    140,690.80    267,686.00     267,686.00    126,995.20    53 %

                         Fund Total:                     1,458.86    140,690.80    267,686.00     267,686.00    126,995.20    53 %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 4 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    30 LIGHTING

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 63000 Lighting

   63000 Lighting

         105 Salaries and Wages                            589.44      3,611.56      8,850.00       8,850.00      5,238.44    41 %

         110 Payroll tax expense                             0.00          0.00        312.00         312.00        312.00       %

         115 Payroll Expenses                                0.00        329.46         20.00          20.00       -309.46   *** %

         120 Workers' Compensation                           0.00         60.62        500.00         500.00        439.38    12 %

         135 Payroll Tax - FICA                         -3,867.25     -3,747.07          0.00           0.00      3,747.07       %

         140 Payroll Tax - Medicare                          8.54         46.36          0.00           0.00        -46.36       %

         155 Payroll Tax - SUI                              10.61         24.93          0.00           0.00        -24.93       %

         160 Payroll Tax - ETT                               0.47          1.13          0.00           0.00         -1.13       %

         165 Payroll Tax - FUTA                             20.52         48.24          0.00           0.00        -48.24       %

         205 Insurance - Health                              0.00        148.58        900.00         900.00        751.42    17 %

         210 Insurance - Dental                              4.28         15.84         70.00          70.00         54.16    23 %

         215 Insurance - Vision                              0.64          2.39         15.00          15.00         12.61    16 %

         225 Retirement - PERS expense                      15.49        824.73        400.00         400.00       -424.73   206 %

         305 Operations and maintenance                      0.00        137.21      1,500.00       1,500.00      1,362.79     9 %

         310 Phone and fax expense                          31.39        173.86        150.00         150.00        -23.86   116 %

         320 Printing and reproduction                       0.00         40.82         75.00          75.00         34.18    54 %

         325 Professional svcs - Accounting                  0.00      3,708.40      1,500.00       1,500.00     -2,208.40   247 %

         326 Professional svcs - Engineering                 0.00        130.00      1,000.00       1,000.00        870.00    13 %

         327 Professional svcs - Legal                       0.00        797.45      1,000.00       1,000.00        202.55    80 %

         328 Insurance - prop and liability                  0.00          0.00      1,000.00       1,000.00      1,000.00       %

         340 Meetings and conferences                        0.00          0.00        100.00         100.00        100.00       %

         350 Repairs and maint - computers                   0.00          0.00      1,500.00       1,500.00      1,500.00       %

         351 Repairs and maint - equip                       0.00          0.00      2,000.00       2,000.00      2,000.00       %

         353 Repairs & Maint- Infrastructure                 0.00          0.00      1,000.00       1,000.00      1,000.00       %

         375 Internet expenses                               3.20         23.52         90.00          90.00         66.48    26 %

         381 Utilities - electric                            0.00      9,256.57     20,000.00      20,000.00     10,743.43    46 %

         382 Utilities - propane                            22.88         41.94        100.00         100.00         58.06    42 %

         393 Advertising and public notices                  0.00         11.30          0.00           0.00        -11.30       %

         394 LAFCO Allocations                               0.00          0.00        425.00         425.00        425.00       %

         405 Software                                        0.00        533.15        300.00         300.00       -233.15   178 %

         410 Office Supplies                                48.81        174.82          0.00           0.00       -174.82       %

         415 Office Equipment                                0.00         48.26          0.00           0.00        -48.26       %

         440 Vehicle Replacement Fund                        0.00        125.00          0.00           0.00       -125.00       %

         465 Cell phones, radios and pagers                  1.05         10.50         50.00          50.00         39.50    21 %

         485 Fuel expense                                    0.00         44.29          0.00           0.00        -44.29       %

         490 Small tools and equipment                       0.00          0.00        400.00         400.00        400.00       %

         500 Capital Outlay                                  0.00      3,910.30          0.00           0.00     -3,910.30       %

         715 Licenses, permits and fees                     32.80         32.80          0.00           0.00        -32.80       %

         905 Transfer out                                    0.00          0.00      2,513.00       2,513.00      2,513.00       %

         930 Interest Fees                                   0.00        -23.51          0.00           0.00         23.51       %

         990 Property Tax Revenue                            0.00       -811.54    -28,549.00     -28,549.00    -27,737.46     3 %

                      Account Total:                    -3,077.13     19,731.91     17,221.00      17,221.00     -2,510.91   115 %

                Account Group Total:                    -3,077.13     19,731.91     17,221.00      17,221.00     -2,510.91   115 %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 5 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    30 LIGHTING

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 64000 Sanitary

   64000 Sanitary

         315 Postage, shipping and freight                 125.00        368.46          0.00           0.00       -368.46       %

                      Account Total:                       125.00        368.46          0.00           0.00       -368.46       %

                Account Group Total:                       125.00        368.46          0.00           0.00       -368.46       %

                         Fund Total:                    -2,952.13     20,100.37     17,221.00      17,221.00     -2,879.37   117 %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 6 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    40 SANITARY

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 62000 Fire

   62500 Fire Hydrants

         326 Professional svcs - Engineering                 0.00      1,155.33          0.00           0.00     -1,155.33       %

                      Account Total:                         0.00      1,155.33          0.00           0.00     -1,155.33       %

                Account Group Total:                         0.00      1,155.33          0.00           0.00     -1,155.33       %

 63000 Lighting

   63000 Lighting

         715 Licenses, permits and fees                     22.80         22.80          0.00           0.00        -22.80       %

                      Account Total:                        22.80         22.80          0.00           0.00        -22.80       %

                Account Group Total:                        22.80         22.80          0.00           0.00        -22.80       %

 64000 Sanitary

   64000 Sanitary

         100 PERSONNEL                                       0.00         96.00          0.00           0.00        -96.00       %

         104 Paid Time Off                                   0.00        208.00          0.00           0.00       -208.00       %

         105 Salaries and Wages                          7,472.20     86,618.28    105,720.00     105,720.00     19,101.72    82 %

         106 Vacation Used                                   0.00        759.02          0.00           0.00       -759.02       %

         107 Overtime                                        0.00      1,525.49      6,500.00       6,500.00      4,974.51    23 %

         108 Sick Leave Used                                 0.00        167.00          0.00           0.00       -167.00       %

         109 Stand-by Hours                                  0.00        734.75          0.00           0.00       -734.75       %

         110 Payroll tax expense                             0.00          0.00      3,510.00       3,510.00      3,510.00       %

         115 Payroll Expenses                                0.00        909.20      1,000.00       1,000.00         90.80    91 %

         120 Workers' Compensation                           0.00         93.08      8,000.00       8,000.00      7,906.92     1 %

         135 Payroll Tax - FICA                         -3,642.01     -1,799.56          0.00           0.00      1,799.56       %

         140 Payroll Tax - Medicare                        107.89      1,275.52          0.00           0.00     -1,275.52       %

         155 Payroll Tax - SUI                              50.82        401.63          0.00           0.00       -401.63       %

         160 Payroll Tax - ETT                               5.73         57.22          0.00           0.00        -57.22       %

         165 Payroll Tax - FUTA                             98.36        777.31          0.00           0.00       -777.31       %

         205 Insurance - Health                            374.54      6,390.08     16,000.00      16,000.00      9,609.92    40 %

         210 Insurance - Dental                             41.11        645.43      1,250.00       1,250.00        604.57    52 %

         215 Insurance - Vision                              6.29         98.35        350.00         350.00        251.65    28 %

         225 Retirement - PERS expense                     352.43      6,687.38     12,250.00      12,250.00      5,562.62    55 %

         305 Operations and maintenance                    194.67      2,871.36      5,000.00       5,000.00      2,128.64    57 %

         306 Water & Sewer Rate Study                        0.00          0.00      6,250.00       6,250.00      6,250.00       %

         310 Phone and fax expense                         125.60      1,124.58      1,200.00       1,200.00         75.42    94 %

         315 Postage, shipping and freight                   0.00        655.36      2,000.00       2,000.00      1,344.64    33 %

         320 Printing and reproduction                       0.00        279.34        600.00         600.00        320.66    47 %

         325 Professional svcs - Accounting                  0.00      4,588.56      1,500.00       1,500.00     -3,088.56   306 %

         326 Professional svcs - Engineering               113.75      3,080.25      7,000.00       7,000.00      3,919.75    44 %

         327 Professional svcs - Legal                       0.00     16,026.26      8,000.00       8,000.00     -8,026.26   200 %

         328 Insurance - prop and liability                  0.00          0.00      6,200.00       6,200.00      6,200.00       %

         340 Meetings and conferences                        0.00          0.00        500.00         500.00        500.00       %

         345 Mileage expense reimbursement                   0.00        212.70        250.00         250.00         37.30    85 %

         350 Repairs and maint - computers                   0.00        764.04      2,000.00       2,000.00      1,235.96    38 %

         351 Repairs and maint - equip                       0.00      1,272.63      7,500.00       7,500.00      6,227.37    17 %

         352 Repairs and maint - structures                  0.00          0.00        450.00         450.00        450.00       %

         353 Repairs & Maint- Infrastructure                 0.00        262.50      3,500.00       3,500.00      3,237.50     8 %

         354 Repairs and maint - vehicles                   20.88         64.10      3,000.00       3,000.00      2,935.90     2 %

         355 WW - Testing & Supplies                         0.00      4,234.00      3,000.00       3,000.00     -1,234.00   141 %

         359 Testing & Supplies-Other                        0.00          0.00      1,000.00       1,000.00      1,000.00       %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 7 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    40 SANITARY

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

         362 Cross-Connection Control Srvcs.                 0.00        250.00          0.00           0.00       -250.00       %

         375 Internet expenses                              12.81        142.28        500.00         500.00        357.72    28 %

         380 Utilities - alarm service                       0.00        609.42      1,100.00       1,100.00        490.58    55 %

         381 Utilities - electric                            0.00     41,407.67     50,000.00      50,000.00      8,592.33    83 %

         382 Utilities - propane                           183.07        309.25        594.00         594.00        284.75    52 %

         383 Utilities - trash                              47.74        423.58        600.00         600.00        176.42    71 %

         385 Dues and subscriptions                          0.00        231.90      1,800.00       1,800.00      1,568.10    13 %

         386 Education and training                          0.00        225.00      1,000.00       1,000.00        775.00    23 %

         393 Advertising and public notices                  0.00         45.20        275.00         275.00        229.80    16 %

         394 LAFCO Allocations                               0.00          0.00      1,600.00       1,600.00      1,600.00       %

         395 Community Outreach                              0.00        163.42        650.00         650.00        486.58    25 %

         405 Software                                        0.00      2,132.60        500.00         500.00     -1,632.60   427 %

         410 Office Supplies                                61.31        649.76        500.00         500.00       -149.76   130 %

         415 Office Equipment                                0.00        193.00          0.00           0.00       -193.00       %

         420 Equipt. & Supplies                              0.00          0.00        700.00         700.00        700.00       %

         440 Vehicle Replacement Fund                        0.00        125.00          0.00           0.00       -125.00       %

         450 EMS supplies                                    0.00          0.00        293.00         293.00        293.00       %

         465 Cell phones, radios and pagers                 39.79        397.82          0.00           0.00       -397.82       %

         470 Communication equipment                         0.00          0.00        500.00         500.00        500.00       %

         485 Fuel expense                                    0.00      1,659.82      3,000.00       3,000.00      1,340.18    55 %

         490 Small tools and equipment                       0.00        641.59      6,500.00       6,500.00      5,858.41    10 %

         495 Uniform expense                                 0.00        457.69        375.00         375.00        -82.69   122 %

         498 Sales Tax Paid                                  0.00        107.08          0.00           0.00       -107.08       %

         500 Capital Outlay                                  0.00     15,241.20          0.00           0.00    -15,241.20       %

         535 Water Lines Repairs                           438.38        438.38          0.00           0.00       -438.38       %

         545 Sewer System Mngmt Plan (SSMP)                  0.00          0.00     14,000.00      14,000.00     14,000.00       %

         550 Reg. Salt & Nutrient Mgmt. Plan                 0.00          0.00      1,200.00       1,200.00      1,200.00       %

         553 Manholes and Valve Raising                      0.00          0.00      8,000.00       8,000.00      8,000.00       %

         555 16th Street Sewer Replacement                   0.00        936.44          0.00           0.00       -936.44       %

         560 Sewer Line Repairs                              0.00        171.01      9,000.00       9,000.00      8,828.99     2 %

         570 Repairs, Maint. and Video Sewer Lines           0.00      9,221.15      9,000.00       9,000.00       -221.15   102 %

         575 Sewer System Mngmt Plan (SSMP)                  0.00          0.00     14,000.00      14,000.00     14,000.00       %

         582 WWTP Plant Maintenance                          0.00      5,135.14     13,000.00      13,000.00      7,864.86    40 %

         583 WWTP Drying Pond Maintenance                    0.00        500.00          0.00           0.00       -500.00       %

         585 Sludge Removal Project                          0.00      6,199.14     15,000.00      15,000.00      8,800.86    41 %

         705 Waste Discharge Fees/Permits                    0.00          0.00     18,000.00      18,000.00     18,000.00       %

         715 Licenses, permits and fees                    180.00     18,848.50      2,500.00       2,500.00    -16,348.50   754 %

         800 Deposit/ Liabilities                            0.00        108.09          0.00           0.00       -108.09       %

         805 Refundable Water & Hydrant Dep                  0.00          5.75          0.00           0.00         -5.75       %

         900 Misc                                            0.00          0.00     13,259.00      13,259.00     13,259.00       %

         905 Transfer out                                    0.00          0.00     11,530.00      11,530.00     11,530.00       %

         908 Cash Over/ Cash Short                           0.00          9.62          0.00           0.00         -9.62       %

         910 Tax Penalties & Late Fees                       0.00          1.52          0.00           0.00         -1.52       %

         911 Finance Charges/Late Fees                       0.00         31.73          0.00           0.00        -31.73       %

         920 Credit Card Service Fees                        0.00          0.00        200.00         200.00        200.00       %

         930 Interest Fees                                   0.00        -94.02          0.00           0.00         94.02       %

         960 Property tax expense                            0.00         30.50        150.00         150.00        119.50    20 %

         990 Property Tax Revenue                            0.00       -463.70    -16,415.00     -16,415.00    -15,951.30     3 %

                      Account Total:                     6,285.36    247,572.39    396,441.00     396,441.00    148,868.61    62 %

                Account Group Total:                     6,285.36    247,572.39    396,441.00     396,441.00    148,868.61    62 %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 8 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    40 SANITARY

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 65000 Water

   65000 Water

         315 Postage, shipping and freight                 125.00        655.83          0.00           0.00       -655.83       %

         500 Capital Outlay                                  0.00        400.00          0.00           0.00       -400.00       %

         585 Sludge Removal Project                          0.00         68.40      1,853.00       1,853.00      1,784.60     4 %

                      Account Total:                       125.00      1,124.23      1,853.00       1,853.00        728.77    61 %

                Account Group Total:                       125.00      1,124.23      1,853.00       1,853.00        728.77    61 %

                         Fund Total:                     6,433.16    249,874.75    398,294.00     398,294.00    148,419.25    63 %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 9 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    50 WATER

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 60000

   60505 Repairs & Maintenance - Infrastructure

         353 Repairs & Maint- Infrastructure               835.29        835.29          0.00           0.00       -835.29       %

         520 Water Main Valves Replacement               3,965.29      3,965.29          0.00           0.00     -3,965.29       %

         530 Fire hydrant replacement                    1,526.28      1,526.28          0.00           0.00     -1,526.28       %

         535 Water Lines Repairs                           501.52        501.52          0.00           0.00       -501.52       %

                      Account Total:                     6,828.38      6,828.38          0.00           0.00     -6,828.38       %

                Account Group Total:                     6,828.38      6,828.38          0.00           0.00     -6,828.38       %

 62000 Fire

   62000 Fire

         315 Postage, shipping and freight                 125.00        655.83          0.00           0.00       -655.83       %

                      Account Total:                       125.00        655.83          0.00           0.00       -655.83       %

   62500 Fire Hydrants

         326 Professional svcs - Engineering                 0.00      1,155.32          0.00           0.00     -1,155.32       %

                      Account Total:                         0.00      1,155.32          0.00           0.00     -1,155.32       %

                Account Group Total:                       125.00      1,811.15          0.00           0.00     -1,811.15       %

 64000 Sanitary

   64000 Sanitary

         358 Testing & Supplies-SLT Well                     0.00        137.00          0.00           0.00       -137.00       %

         359 Testing & Supplies-Other                        0.00        260.00          0.00           0.00       -260.00       %

                      Account Total:                         0.00        397.00          0.00           0.00       -397.00       %

                Account Group Total:                         0.00        397.00          0.00           0.00       -397.00       %

 65000 Water

   65000 Water

         100 PERSONNEL                                       0.00         27.00          0.00           0.00        -27.00       %

         104 Paid Time Off                                   0.00        208.00          0.00           0.00       -208.00       %

         105 Salaries and Wages                         11,844.58    102,224.53    126,660.00     126,660.00     24,435.47    81 %

         106 Vacation Used                                   0.00        283.98          0.00           0.00       -283.98       %

         107 Overtime                                        0.00      1,179.01      2,000.00       2,000.00        820.99    59 %

         108 Sick Leave Used                                 0.00        167.00          0.00           0.00       -167.00       %

         109 Stand-by Hours                                  0.00        736.75          0.00           0.00       -736.75       %

         110 Payroll tax expense                             0.00          0.00      3,510.00       3,510.00      3,510.00       %

         115 Payroll Expenses                                0.00        909.20        590.00         590.00       -319.20   154 %

         120 Workers' Compensation                           0.00        100.96      4,000.00       4,000.00      3,899.04     3 %

         135 Payroll Tax - FICA                         -3,642.02     -1,799.57          0.00           0.00      1,799.57       %

         140 Payroll Tax - Medicare                        170.41      1,486.62          0.00           0.00     -1,486.62       %

         155 Payroll Tax - SUI                              74.98        448.43          0.00           0.00       -448.43       %

         160 Payroll Tax - ETT                              10.08         71.97          0.00           0.00        -71.97       %

         165 Payroll Tax - FUTA                            145.12        867.95          0.00           0.00       -867.95       %

         205 Insurance - Health                          1,007.31      8,104.23     12,664.00      12,664.00      4,559.77    64 %

         210 Insurance - Dental                             78.85        772.46      1,017.00       1,017.00        244.54    76 %

         215 Insurance - Vision                             11.99        117.63        200.00         200.00         82.37    59 %

         225 Retirement - PERS expense                     854.29      7,851.79     12,250.00      12,250.00      4,398.21    64 %

         305 Operations and maintenance                    291.36      4,096.01      4,500.00       4,500.00        403.99    91 %

         310 Phone and fax expense                         178.43      1,550.23      1,500.00       1,500.00        -50.23   103 %

         315 Postage, shipping and freight                   0.00        623.65      2,100.00       2,100.00      1,476.35    30 %

         320 Printing and reproduction                      58.97        505.72        400.00         400.00       -105.72   126 %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 10 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    50 WATER

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

         325 Professional svcs - Accounting                  0.00      4,588.53      2,400.00       2,400.00     -2,188.53   191 %

         326 Professional svcs - Engineering                22.75      1,654.25     10,000.00      10,000.00      8,345.75    17 %

         327 Professional svcs - Legal                       0.00     53,296.33     10,550.00      10,550.00    -42,746.33   505 %

         328 Insurance - prop and liability                  0.00          0.00      6,820.00       6,820.00      6,820.00       %

         335 Meals - Fire                                    0.00         31.44          0.00           0.00        -31.44       %

         340 Meetings and conferences                        0.00          0.00        400.00         400.00        400.00       %

         345 Mileage expense reimbursement                   0.00        290.89        250.00         250.00        -40.89   116 %

         350 Repairs and maint - computers                   0.00        764.04      1,000.00       1,000.00        235.96    76 %

         351 Repairs and maint - equip                       0.00      2,597.22      1,500.00       1,500.00     -1,097.22   173 %

         352 Repairs and maint - structures                  0.00        966.89          0.00           0.00       -966.89       %

         353 Repairs & Maint- Infrastructure                 0.00      5,345.72      5,000.00       5,000.00       -345.72   107 %

         354 Repairs and maint - vehicles                  183.20        183.20      1,000.00       1,000.00        816.80    18 %

         355 WW - Testing & Supplies                         0.00         81.00          0.00           0.00        -81.00       %

         356 Testing & Supplies-Well #3                     47.00     25,783.60          0.00           0.00    -25,783.60       %

         357 Testing & Supplies-Well #4                     47.00        836.69          0.00           0.00       -836.69       %

         358 Testing & Supplies-SLT Well                   209.00      3,532.00          0.00           0.00     -3,532.00       %

         359 Testing & Supplies-Other                      327.00      5,206.34          0.00           0.00     -5,206.34       %

         362 Cross-Connection Control Srvcs.               109.20        908.30        800.00         800.00       -108.30   114 %

         375 Internet expenses                              12.81        142.25        270.00         270.00        127.75    53 %

         376 Webpage- Upgrade/Maint                          0.00          0.00      6,000.00       6,000.00      6,000.00       %

         380 Utilities - alarm service                       0.00        589.43        775.00         775.00        185.57    76 %

         381 Utilities - electric                            0.00     21,200.49     29,500.00      29,500.00      8,299.51    72 %

         382 Utilities - propane                           183.07        309.25        600.00         600.00        290.75    52 %

         383 Utilities - trash                              47.73        423.57        625.00         625.00        201.43    68 %

         385 Dues and subscriptions                      1,500.00      6,540.90      1,540.00       1,540.00     -5,000.90   425 %

         386 Education and training                          0.00        829.24      2,000.00       2,000.00      1,170.76    41 %

         393 Advertising and public notices                  0.00        200.45        150.00         150.00        -50.45   134 %

         394 LAFCO Allocations                               0.00          0.00      1,645.00       1,645.00      1,645.00       %

         395 Community Outreach                              0.00        163.26        650.00         650.00        486.74    25 %

         400 Supplies                                        0.00          0.00      6,000.00       6,000.00      6,000.00       %

         405 Software                                        0.00      2,132.60        500.00         500.00     -1,632.60   427 %

         410 Office Supplies                                53.51        631.96        700.00         700.00         68.04    90 %

         415 Office Equipment                                0.00        193.00          0.00           0.00       -193.00       %

         420 Equipt. & Supplies                            187.27        187.27        650.00         650.00        462.73    29 %

         425 Equip & Supplies-Well  #3                       0.00     50,491.04          0.00           0.00    -50,491.04       %

         430 Equipt & Supplies-Well #4                       0.00      1,195.95          0.00           0.00     -1,195.95       %

         440 Vehicle Replacement Fund                        0.00        125.00          0.00           0.00       -125.00       %

         465 Cell phones, radios and pagers                 39.77        397.92        600.00         600.00        202.08    66 %

         470 Communication equipment                         0.00          0.00        100.00         100.00        100.00       %

         480 Chemicals                                       0.00          0.00      5,100.00       5,100.00      5,100.00       %

         481 Chemicals- Well #3                              0.00      1,001.74          0.00           0.00     -1,001.74       %

         482 Chemicals-Well #4                               0.00      1,134.09          0.00           0.00     -1,134.09       %

         485 Fuel expense                                    0.00      1,356.98      3,200.00       3,200.00      1,843.02    42 %

         490 Small tools and equipment                       0.00        602.73      1,500.00       1,500.00        897.27    40 %

         495 Uniform expense                                 0.00        457.69        700.00         700.00        242.31    65 %

         500 Capital Outlay                                  0.00     15,241.20          0.00           0.00    -15,241.20       %

         516 Water Projects Well 3                           0.00      9,272.15          0.00           0.00     -9,272.15       %

         517 Water Projects Well 4                           0.00        479.29          0.00           0.00       -479.29       %

         525 Water meter replacement                     1,253.04      2,629.99      9,800.00       9,800.00      7,170.01    27 %

         530 Fire hydrant replacement                        0.00         50.00          0.00           0.00        -50.00       %

         537 River Road Realignment                          0.00        170.82          0.00           0.00       -170.82       %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 11 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    50 WATER

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

         550 Reg. Salt & Nutrient Mgmt. Plan                 0.00     -1,893.86          0.00           0.00      1,893.86       %

         553 Manholes and Valve Raising                    462.50      1,062.00          0.00           0.00     -1,062.00       %

         560 Sewer Line Repairs                              0.00        554.30          0.00           0.00       -554.30       %

         570 Repairs, Maint. and Video Sewer Lines           0.00      3,379.00          0.00           0.00     -3,379.00       %

         605 USDA Loan Payment                               0.00     66,381.01     67,000.00      67,000.00        618.99    99 %

         715 Licenses, permits and fees                     32.80     -1,327.70      7,000.00       7,000.00      8,327.70   -19 %

         800 Deposit/ Liabilities                            0.00         -4.00          0.00           0.00          4.00       %

         805 Refundable Water & Hydrant Dep                144.09      3,057.59          0.00           0.00     -3,057.59       %

         905 Transfer out                                    0.00          0.00     28,608.00      28,608.00     28,608.00       %

         908 Cash Over/ Cash Short                           0.00          9.62          0.00           0.00         -9.62       %

         910 Tax Penalties & Late Fees                       0.00         23.11          0.00           0.00        -23.11       %

         911 Finance Charges/Late Fees                       0.00         -1.15          0.00           0.00          1.15       %

         930 Interest Fees                                   0.00        -94.02          0.00           0.00         94.02       %

                      Account Total:                    15,946.09    425,896.15    386,324.00     386,324.00    -39,572.15   110 %

                Account Group Total:                    15,946.09    425,896.15    386,324.00     386,324.00    -39,572.15   110 %

 66000 SOLID WASTE

   66000 SOLID WASTE

         500 Capital Outlay                                  0.00        400.00          0.00           0.00       -400.00       %

                      Account Total:                         0.00        400.00          0.00           0.00       -400.00       %

                Account Group Total:                         0.00        400.00          0.00           0.00       -400.00       %

                         Fund Total:                    22,899.47    435,332.68    386,324.00     386,324.00    -49,008.68   113 %



04/12/16                                       SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT                           Page: 12 of 12

10:31:29                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100

                                             For the Accounting Period:    3 / 16

    60 SOLID WASTE

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                      Committed     Committed     Original     Current       Available        %

   Account   Object                                 Current Month      YTD      Appropriation  Appropriation Appropriation Committed

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 66000 SOLID WASTE

   66000 SOLID WASTE

         105 Salaries and Wages                              0.00          0.00     16,200.00      16,200.00     16,200.00       %

         110 Payroll tax expense                             0.00          0.00        700.00         700.00        700.00       %

         310 Phone and fax expense                           0.00          0.00        100.00         100.00        100.00       %

         325 Professional svcs - Accounting                  0.00          0.00        500.00         500.00        500.00       %

         327 Professional svcs - Legal                       0.00      3,155.00      4,500.00       4,500.00      1,345.00    70 %

         340 Meetings and conferences                        0.00          0.00        100.00         100.00        100.00       %

         350 Repairs and maint - computers                   0.00          0.00        100.00         100.00        100.00       %

         385 Dues and subscriptions                          0.00          0.00        100.00         100.00        100.00       %

         386 Education and training                          0.00          0.00        100.00         100.00        100.00       %

         393 Advertising and public notices                  0.00         13.95        500.00         500.00        486.05     3 %

         395 Community Outreach                              0.00          0.00        250.00         250.00        250.00       %

         405 Software                                        0.00          0.00        100.00         100.00        100.00       %

         585 Sludge Removal Project                          0.00      5,090.75          0.00           0.00     -5,090.75       %

         950 Promo materials and supplies                    0.00          0.00      3,000.00       3,000.00      3,000.00       %

                      Account Total:                         0.00      8,259.70     26,250.00      26,250.00     17,990.30    31 %

                Account Group Total:                         0.00      8,259.70     26,250.00      26,250.00     17,990.30    31 %

                         Fund Total:                         0.00      8,259.70     26,250.00      26,250.00     17,990.30    31 %

                        Grand Total:                    29,425.08    877,984.84  1,175,647.00   1,175,647.00    297,662.16    75 %





















Page 1 of 1 
Board Meeting 4-28-2016 

 

 
San Miguel Community Services District 

Staff Report 
 

 
April 28, 2016       AGENDA ITEM   XI. 18  
 
SUBJECT: Consider a request to nominate a Board Member or General Manager for CSDA 

Board of Director Election to Seat B for the term 2017-19.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors discuss and provide direction to direction. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
CSDA has announced a scheduled vacancy for Seat B of their Board of Directors and called for 
any nominations of persons to serve for the term 20176-19.  CSDA’s Board represents six 
geographic regions of the State.  Any candidate offered by SMCSD must be affiliated with a 
Special District, as an elected official or General Manager to serve the described term and be in 
Seat B boundaries.  SMCSD is located within Seat B boundaries. 
 
The CSDA bulletin calling is attached as a part of this report.  The Board should discuss interest 
in nominating a person for the CSDA election process.  The requirements for serving on the 
CSDA Board are also listed in the attached bulletin.  The nomination procedures are also detailed 
on the attached document.  Ballots for this election will be sent to districts begin on June 3rd.  
Ballots are due back no later than August 5, 2016.  All selected and elected CSDA Board 
Members would be announced at the Annual Conference in October, which is schedule to take 
place in October.   
 
The Board should consider and provide direction to Staff regarding any nomination by the 
SMCSD Board of Directors. This is not a mandatory requirement.  If the Board wants to support 
a nominee for election, then the Board should consider any nomination of the Board Members 
present.    If the Board elects to not nominate any person for the CSDA Board of Directors, then 
no action is required by the Board. 
 
PREPARED BY:      

Darrell GentryDarrell GentryDarrell GentryDarrell Gentry   
______________________________       
Darrell Gentry, General Manager 
   
Attachment:  CSDA Bulletin dated February 2016 regarding nomination and election process 
 













Page 1 of 1 
Resolution No 2016-18 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-18 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING  JOB RECLASSIFICATIONS FOR 

2 DISTRICT EMPLOYEES AND AUTHORIZING A CHANGE IN COMPENSATION 
SCHEDULE FOR JOB RECLASSIFICATIONS 

  WHEREAS,  the San Miguel Community Services District (“SMCSD”) has adopted 
District Personnel Policies effective November 2014 require job reclassifications and changes in 
related compensation to be approved by the Board of Directors (“Board”); and  

  WHEREAS, the District General Manager (“Manager”) has responsibility for 
recommending any change in job reclassification and compensation to the Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Manager has recommended job reclassifications and compensation 
adjustments for two named individual employees identified in a written report dated March 24, 
2016 to the Board; and  

WHEREAS, the Board, based on Manager’s recommendation in support of these 
changes in job reclassification and compensation did approve these changes at its Regular 
Board Meeting, March 24, 2016; and  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board approves and grants the 
job reclassifications and compensation changes retroactively, as specified in written report 
to the Board dated March 24, 2016. 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors on a motion of Director Buckman, 
seconded by Director  Dawes by the following roll call vote: 

  
 AYES:   Buckman, Dawes, Reuck  

         NOES:   
          ABSENT:  Green, Kalvans 
           ABSTAINING: 
 
The foregoing Resolution is hereby passed and adopted this 28 day of April, 2016. 
       
         ___________________________ 
         John Green, President 
         Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Darrell W. Gentry, General Manager   Doug White, District General Counsel 
and Secretary to the Board  

 



 

  
San Miguel Community Services District

 
April 28, 2016                                             
 
SUBJECT:  Consider and Discuss a Presentation of District Energy Audit Report for 
  Cost Reduction Opportunities and Efficiencies.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider and Discuss a presentation on District Energy Audit Report by Jon Griesser, County 
Energy Watch and Climate Programs Supervisor.  Board may provide direction to staff.
 
BACKGROUND:  
In January of this year, Energy Watch, in partnership with PG & E, completed an energy audit of 
District facilities and operations.  A goal of this audit was to identify means and methods for the 
District to reduce energy consumption through equipment ef
reduce our carbon footprint.   
 
Equipment & Facilities Committee heard this presentation and discussed the Energy Audit 
Report at its March 17, 2016 meeting.  Committee unanimously agreed to forward the Energy 
Audit Report forward to Board for review and discussion.  Committee further recommended that 
the Board accept and file the submitted report and provide direction to Staff
indicated support for replacing aerator motors and look at possibility for sola
as recommended in the report.  There are other funding sources that Mr. Griesser will provide to 
Board. 
 
Mr. Griesser was invited today
information, a report on results achieved and 
with cost savings and operational improvements and efficiencies.  
provides an opportunity for questions and discuss
for the District.  A copy of the Final Report is attached as a part of
 
A separate visual presentation will 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
No fiscal impact at this time.  Future budgeting would need to incorporate costs associated with 
any implementation actions.    
 
 

Board Meeting 4

San Miguel Community Services District 
Board of Directors  

 

Staff Report 

                                                  AGENDA ITEM: 

Consider and Discuss a Presentation of District Energy Audit Report for 
Reduction Opportunities and Efficiencies. 

ECOMMENDATION:   
Consider and Discuss a presentation on District Energy Audit Report by Jon Griesser, County 
Energy Watch and Climate Programs Supervisor.  Board may provide direction to staff.

In January of this year, Energy Watch, in partnership with PG & E, completed an energy audit of 
District facilities and operations.  A goal of this audit was to identify means and methods for the 
District to reduce energy consumption through equipment efficiencies and improvements and to 

Equipment & Facilities Committee heard this presentation and discussed the Energy Audit 
Report at its March 17, 2016 meeting.  Committee unanimously agreed to forward the Energy 

t forward to Board for review and discussion.  Committee further recommended that 
the Board accept and file the submitted report and provide direction to Staff.  Committee also 
indicated support for replacing aerator motors and look at possibility for solar panels at WWTP 

There are other funding sources that Mr. Griesser will provide to 

Mr. Griesser was invited today, in follow-up, to provide Board members with background 
information, a report on results achieved and the implications for SMCSD to proceed forward 

operational improvements and efficiencies.  This presentation also 
an opportunity for questions and discussion in depth any short term and future measures 

y of the Final Report is attached as a part of this staff report for 

A separate visual presentation will also be provided at the meeting. 

No fiscal impact at this time.  Future budgeting would need to incorporate costs associated with 

Page 1 of 2 
Board Meeting 4-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM: XII-20  

Consider and Discuss a Presentation of District Energy Audit Report for  

Consider and Discuss a presentation on District Energy Audit Report by Jon Griesser, County 
Energy Watch and Climate Programs Supervisor.  Board may provide direction to staff. 

In January of this year, Energy Watch, in partnership with PG & E, completed an energy audit of 
District facilities and operations.  A goal of this audit was to identify means and methods for the 

ficiencies and improvements and to 

Equipment & Facilities Committee heard this presentation and discussed the Energy Audit 
Report at its March 17, 2016 meeting.  Committee unanimously agreed to forward the Energy 

t forward to Board for review and discussion.  Committee further recommended that 
.  Committee also 
r panels at WWTP 

There are other funding sources that Mr. Griesser will provide to 

members with background 
D to proceed forward 

presentation also 
in depth any short term and future measures 

this staff report for discussion.   

No fiscal impact at this time.  Future budgeting would need to incorporate costs associated with 



Page 2 of 2 
Board Meeting 4-28-2016 

 

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Board discuss findings and provide 
direction to staff.  At a minimum, Staff would recommend that the Board direct Staff to include 
in FY 2016-17 Budget cost consideration for replacing Pond #1 aerator motor with a high energy 
efficient motor.  Also include cost consideration for FY 2017-18 Budget for installing solar 
panels at Machado WWTP and/or pursue other funding sources as presented and identified in 
this report to the Board. 
 
These costs should be identified and processed through Committees as a part of the upcoming 
budgetary process. 
 
 
PREPARED BY:          
Darrell GentryDarrell GentryDarrell GentryDarrell Gentry 
General Manager 
 
Attachment: 
Final Energy Audit Report by Energy Watch 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

San Miguel 
Community Services 
District 

1150 Mission St 
San Miguel, CA 93451 

Final Report by 

 
1/6/2016 

Copyright ©2015 Pacific Gas & Electric Company. All rights reserved. 

Reproduction or distribution of the whole, or any part of the contents of this document without written 

permission of PG&E is prohibited. Neither PG&E nor any of its employees makes any warranty, express or 

implied, or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any 

data, information, method, product or process disclosed in this document, or represents that its use will not 

infringe upon any privately-owned rights, including but not limited to, patents, trademarks or copyrights. 

 

PG&E Large Integrated Audit 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD i 

Disclaimer 

The intent of this energy analysis report is to identify energy savings opportunities associated 

with recommended upgrades to the equipment and systems at the San Miguel Community 

Services District in San Miguel, CA. Approximate saving ranges are included in this report to 

help the customer make informed decisions about reducing energy use at the facility. However, 

this report does not intend to serve as a detailed engineering design document. It is necessary 

to note that detailed design efforts are required in order to implement several of the 

improvements evaluated as part of this energy analysis. 

As a result, Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) and kW Engineering Inc. are not liable if 

estimated savings ranges or economics are not actually achieved. All savings and cost 

estimates in the report are for informational purposes, and are not to be construed as a design 

document or as guarantees.   

In no event will PG&E or kW Engineering Inc. be liable for the failure of the customer to achieve 

a specified amount of energy savings, the operation of customer’s facilities, or any incidental or 

consequential damages of any kind in connection with this report or the installation of 

recommended measures. 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD ii 

Table of Contents 

Disclaimer............................................................................................................................................................... i 

Table of Contents ................................................................................................................................................. ii 

1 Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Your Cost Reduction Opportunities................................................................................................... 1 

Energy Action Plan ........................................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Implementation Planning ..................................................................................................................... 3 

2 Project Team and Facility Information ...................................................................................................... 4 

2.1 Project Contacts .................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.2 General Site Information ...................................................................................................................... 5 

2.3 Facility Descriptions and Operating Hours ...................................................................................... 5 

District Office and New Firehouse ................................................................................................... 6 

Old Firehouse ................................................................................................................................... 6 

Wastewater Treatment Plant ............................................................................................................ 7 

2.4 System Descriptions ............................................................................................................................ 7 

Wastewater System .......................................................................................................................... 7 

Freshwater System ........................................................................................................................... 9 

2.5 Energy Using System ......................................................................................................................... 10 

Lighting Systems.............................................................................................................................10 

HVAC Systems ................................................................................................................................12 

Wastewater System .........................................................................................................................12 

Freshwater System ..........................................................................................................................13 

3 Site Energy Use and Costs ....................................................................................................................... 14 

3.1 Total Cost of Energy ........................................................................................................................... 14 

Buildings and Facilities ...................................................................................................................14 

Wastewater System .........................................................................................................................17 

Fresh Water System ........................................................................................................................18 

3.2 Electric Energy Balance ..................................................................................................................... 20 

4 Energy Project Opportunities ................................................................................................................... 21 

4.1 Energy Analysis Methodology .......................................................................................................... 21 

Level of Analysis .............................................................................................................................21 

Measure Order .................................................................................................................................21 

4.2 No-Cost Measures (NCM) .................................................................................................................. 22 

4.3 Low-Cost Measures (LCM) ................................................................................................................ 23 

LCM-1: Replace Interior Halogen, Incandescent, and CFL Downlights with LEDs ........................24 

LCM-2: Upgrade Exterior Metal Halide, CFL, and Halogen Fixtures with LEDs with Bi-Level 

Controls ...........................................................................................................................................26 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD iii 

LCM-3: Install Premium Efficiency Motors as Motors Need Replacement .....................................29 

4.4 Capital-Intensive Measures (CIM) ..................................................................................................... 31 

CIM-4: Retrofit Surface Aerators with VFDs and Use Existing DO Sensors to Automatically 

Modulate Aeration of Treatment Ponds ..........................................................................................32 

CIM-5: Install Higher Efficiency Aerators ........................................................................................34 

4.5 Not Recommended Measures (NRM) ............................................................................................... 37 

NRM-6: Install High Efficiency Pumps at Headworks .....................................................................37 

NRM-7: Install Photocells to Reduce Lighting Levels in Areas with Sufficient Daylighting ..........38 

NRM-8: Install High Efficiency Pumps at Well Pumps #3 and #4 ...................................................39 

NRM-9: Install VFDs at Well Pumps #3 and #4 ................................................................................39 

4.6 Load Management Measures (LMM) ................................................................................................ 40 

LMM-1: Shift Water Pumping Out of the Peak Period .....................................................................41 

4.7 Demand Response Measures (DRM) ............................................................................................... 43 

DRM-1: Turn Off Interior Lighting during a Demand Response Event ...........................................47 

4.8 Distributed Generation Measures (DGM) ........................................................................................ 48 

DGM-1: Install Solar PV System to Offset WWTP Energy Use .......................................................48 

5 Appendix: Calculations and Supplemental Information ...................................................................... 50 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 1 

1 Executive Summary 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) sponsored this Integrated Energy Audit Report for 

the San Miguel Community Services District (CSD) in San Miguel, CA. 

The goal of a PG&E Integrated Energy Audit is to provide you with an Energy Action Plan, 

which identifies and prioritizes potential energy and demand savings from the following kinds of 

opportunities: 

 Energy conservation 

 Energy efficiency (including retro-commissioning) 

 Time-of-use management (load shifting) 

 Demand response  

 Self-generation. 

The study was conducted by kW Engineering, in collaboration with PG&E, as part of a 

comprehensive effort to assist PG&E customers in controlling energy costs and protecting our 

environment by offering a full spectrum of energy management options.  

We recommend the following highest priority measures, which are relatively low cost, 

straightforward, and have an attractive payback, for immediate action (see report for details): 

 LCM-1: Replace Interior Halogen, Incandescent, and CFL Downlights with LEDs 

 LCM-2: Upgrade Exterior MH, CFL, and Halogen Fixtures with LEDs with Bi-Level 
Controls 

Significant rebates and incentives are available from PG&E to reduce the cost of energy project 

implementation.  Be sure to coordinate with your PG&E Account Manager for assistance in 

applying for incentives. Remember, “Apply before you buy!”  

1.1 Your Cost Reduction Opportunities 

kW Engineering identified four energy efficiency measures that, if implemented, could save 

roughly $43,600/yr in energy costs at the San Miguel Community Service District with a 

combined payback of roughly 4 years. We have summarized the recommended measures in 

Table 1.1: Energy Action Plan; brief descriptions of each measure are included in Section 4, 

“Energy Project Opportunities.”  

Energy Action Plan 

The following Energy Action Plan (EAP) provides overall direction on how to act on the list of 

recommended measures. It provides an integrated strategy for short and long-term 

implementation of energy efficiency, retro-commissioning, demand response and other energy 

projects. The Energy Action Plan considers measure interactions, challenges, and opportunities, 

which can affect project implementation.  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 2 

Table 1.1: Energy Action Plan 

 

 

Approximate Financials

Group

(Priority / 

Timing)

Measure 

No.
Measure Description

Annual 

Savings 

($/yr)

Rough

Installed

Cost ($)

Potential 

Incentive 

($)

Simple 

Payback

(Yrs)

Confidence

(H/M/L)
Next Steps

Buildings & 

Facilities
LCM-1

Replace Interior Halogen, 

Incandescent, and CFL Downlights 

with LEDs

 $         20  $           44  $          -   2.2 High

We recommend a couple trial installations to evaluate the 

appearance change from the new fixtures before replacing all the 

interior downlights.

Buildings & 

Facilities
LCM-2

Upgrade Exterior MH, CFL, and 

Halogen Fixtures with LEDs with Bi-

Level Controls

 $     1,300  $      7,500  $        830 5.1 High

In adition to a vendor site walk, we recommend a couple trial 

installations to evaluate the appearance change from the new 

fixtures before replacing all the HID fixtures.

Wastewater 

System
LCM-3

Install High Efficiency Motors as 

Motors Need Replacement
 $        900  $      4,400  $          -   4.9 High

Note: The installed cost shown is an incremental cost. Rough 

Installed Cost for this measure is the Incremental Cost for 

premium efficiency motors over standard efficiency motors.

Wastewater 

System
CIM-4

Retrofit Surface Aerators with VFDs 

and Use Existing DO Sensors to 

Automatically Modulate Aeration of 

Treatment Ponds

 $     4,500  $     27,000  $     2,400 5.5 Medium

The implementation of this measure and CIM-4 are mutually 

exclusive. We recommend you have a vendor make a site walk in 

order to obtain a more accurate cost estimate.

Wastewater 

System
CIM-5

Install Higher Efficiency Aeration 

System
 $   36,700  $   128,000  $          -   3.5 Medium

Note: The installed cost shown is an incremental cost. It may 

be more cost effective to retrofit ponds #1 and 2 with fine 

porbubble diffused aeration and leave ponds #3 and 4 with 

surface aerators.

Load 

Management
LMM-1

Shift a Portion of the Well Water 

Pumping Out of the Summer Peak 

Period

 $        537  $     42,000  $          -   78.2 Medium

We recommend investigating the current daily pumping patterns 

for each well. We assumed the usage pattern was similar to a 

residential diurnal water usage pattern in our analysis.

Demand 

Response
DRM-1

Turn Off Interior Lighting during a 

Demand Response (DR) Event
 $           3  $            -    $          -   Immediate High

This is an operational change that can be implemented by in-

house staff.

Distributed 

Generation
DGM-1

Install Photovoltaic Solar System to 

Offset Energy Use
 $   51,957  $   689,000  $          -   13.3 Medium

We recommend a site visit with a solar contractor to assess 

potential locations and feasibility for solar PV.



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 3 

1.2 Implementation Planning 

We encourage you to seriously consider the recommendations contained within this report. 

Please discuss next steps with your PG&E Account Manager, who will assist with 

implementation planning, and will ensure that you take advantage of appropriate PG&E 

incentives and programs. (Remember, “Apply before you buy.”). 

You may also check the following website for further information on available PG&E rebates and 

incentives: http://www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/rebatesincentives/ 

You may consider using PG&E program partners, local contractors and trade professionals (link 

below) who offer special assistance in implementing energy efficiency measures for your 

business. These specialists help you to take advantage of PG&E rebates and incentives by 

distributing, installing, and servicing the energy efficient equipment and systems that PG&E 

supports. See: http://www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/partnersandtradepros/ 

To ensure projects are implemented so that maximum savings and incentives are achieved, 

bids and specifications should often be reviewed. Your PG&E Account Manager or the auditing 

consultant may help with this. 

The remainder of this report is organized as follows:  

 Section 2 documents the project contacts and existing systems and conditions for the 

site; 

 Section 3 shows and discusses the site’s energy use and costs; 

 Section 4 provides brief descriptions of each energy measure. 

  

http://www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/rebatesincentives/
http://www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/partnersandtradepros/


 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 4 

2 Project Team and Facility Information 

2.1 Project Contacts 

Name Role Contact Information 

San Miguel CSD 

Kelly Dodds Utility Supervisor (805) 467-3388 
kdodds@sanmiguelcsd.org 

Darrell Gentry General Manager (805) 467-3388 

darrell.gentry@sanmiguelcsd.org 

Energy Watch – San Luis Obispo County 

Jon Griesser Energy Program Manager (805) 781-5611 

jgriesser@co.slo.ca.us 

PG&E 

Perla De Leon Customer Relationship 
Manager 

(805) 595-6444 
PMD7@pge.com 

Bryce Dias Customer Care Program 
Manager 

(415) 973-3709 
BADM@pge.com 

kW Engineering  

Bryan Hackett, P.E.,  
Senior Engineer II 

 

 

Auditors 287 17th Street, Suite 300 
Oakland, CA 94612 

(510) 834-6420 
(510) 834-6421 fax 

bhackett@kw-engineering.com 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 5 

2.2 General Site Information 

On March 18, 2015, kW Engineering, as a PG&E contractor, performed an integrated energy 

audit at the San Miguel CSD facilities in San Miguel, California. The kW Engineering team met 

with Kelly Dodds (San Miguel CSD Utility Supervisor), Jon Griesser (Energy Watch Manager), 

and Callie Lewis (Energy Watch Planner) to review the facilities and focus the investigation on 

specific energy-using systems. 

The San Miguel CSD was created in February 2000 by the San Luis Obispo Board of 

Supervisors to provide public services for the community’s 2,300 residents. The CSD provides 

services including fire protection (San Miguel Fire Protection District), public lighting (San Miguel 

Lighting District), fresh water, and waste water (San Miguel Sanitary District). 

 

Figure 2.1: San Miguel CSD Service Area (source: San Miguel Community Plan) 

2.3 Facility Descriptions and Operating Hours 

We focused on the following facilities during the audit: New Firehouse and District Office, Old 

Firehouse, Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP), and freshwater well pump stations. 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 6 

District Office and New Firehouse 

The District Office and New Firehouse share the same building. The District Office is open 

Monday through Friday from 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM. The Fire Department operates on a volunteer 

basis, but is typically occupied from 7:00 AM to 4:30 PM when maintenance or training is being 

performed.  

 

Figure 2.2: District Office (left) and New Firehouse (right) (source: google) 

 

Table 2.1: San Miguel District Office and New Firehouse Hours of Operation 

Facility Facility Type Operating Schedule Annual Hours 

District Main Office Office 
8 hrs/day 

5 days/week 
52 weeks/year 

2,080 hours 

Fire Station Firehouse 
9.5 hours/day 

7 days/week 
52 weeks/year 

3,458 hours 

 

Old Firehouse 

The Old Firehouse is no longer in regular use, and is used primarily to store antique firefighting 

equipment such as the old ’37 ladder bucket truck and the bucket brigade wagon shown in 

Figure 2.3 on the following page. 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 7 

  

Figure 2.3: Old Firehouse (left), Bucket Brigade Wagon (right) 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

The wastewater treatment plant operates continuously throughout the year. The two-vehicle 

maintenance garage and adjacent storage shed are occupied intermittently by site staff during 

their eight-hour work shifts. 

2.4 System Descriptions 

Wastewater System 

Wastewater from residential and commercial customers is conveyed by gravity through the 

sewer lines to the headworks at the WWTP. The WWTP has a design capacity of 200,000 

gallons per day (GPD), with an average daily flow of 112,000 GPD. 

The lift station at the headworks pumps the influent to a series of four aeration ponds. The 

aeration ponds utilize floating aerators to provide oxygen, which promotes aerobic microbial 

digestion of organic solids. After the material flows through all four aeration ponds, the effluent 

is discharged to two percolation ponds, where it recharges the underlying aquifer. An aerial view 

of the WWTP is show in Figure 2.4. Process steps for the Wastewater Treatment Plant are 

shown in Figure 2.5. 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 8 

 

Figure 2.4: WWTP Aerial View 

 

 

Figure 2.5: Wastewater Treatment Process Flow Diagram 

Aeration Pond 

#1 
Aeration Pond 

#2 

Aeration Pond 

#3 

Aeration Pond 

#4 

Percolation Pond 

Emergency 

Percolation Pond 

Percolation Pond 

Headworks 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 9 

Freshwater System 

San Miguel’s freshwater system draws from the Paso Robles Formation and consists of three 
well pump stations: Well Pump 3, Well Pump 4, and Well Pump 5 (also known as the Terrace 
well). The total water storage capacity is 700,000 gallons, which includes a 650,000-gallon tank 
and a 50,000-gallon tank. Water from the storage tanks is distributed by gravity. The current 
daily fresh water usage is between 100,000 and 120,000 gallons per day.  
 
Well Pumps 3 and 4 are located west of the Salinas River and serve the central water 
distribution system. Water from both wells is pumped from a depth a 300 feet to maintain the 
water level in the 650,000 gallon storage tank located on the west side of town.  
 
Well Pump 5 is located east of the Salinas River, and fills the 50,000 gallon storage tank that 
serves the San Lawrence Terrace neighborhood. Water from Well 5 is pumped from a depth of 
400 feet and contains elevated levels of arsenic, which requires treatment. The existing capacity 
for arsenic treatment at Well 5 is not sufficient to treat the water when pumped at full speed.  
The well pump is equipped with a variable frequency drive (VFD) that functions as a soft start 
and allows the pump to operate at reduced flow. Due to the elevated arsenic levels, this well 
operates infrequently (less than 10 hours per month). San Miguel CSD is in the process of 
applying for a grant that would fund additional arsenic treatment capacity, allowing Well 5 to 
increase pump flows. 
 

 

Figure 2.6: San Miguel CSD Freshwater Distribution System 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 10 

2.5 Energy Using System 

Lighting Systems 

Interior Lighting 

The District Office and New Firehouse building is the only facility with consistent interior light 

operation. Most of the building’s original area lighting was recently retrofitted from 8-ft T12 

fluorescent lamps with magnetic ballasts to 4-ft T8 fluorescent lamps with electronic ballasts. In 

addition, four 18-watt CFL downlights contribute to the general area lighting (two in the hallway 

and two in the front office). All of the interior lighting is manually controlled by wall switches. We 

measured light levels in the front office to assess daylighting potential, see Table 2.2 for details. 

Daylight alone was sufficient to illuminate the space at 1:30 PM.

 

 

Figure 2.7: Hallway CFLs 

 

Figure 2.8: Typical T8 Fluorescent Office 
Fixtures 

 

Table 2.2: Measured Light Levels in Front Office 

Facility Space 
Measured Light Levels 

(fc) 

District Office 
Front Office (lights on) 50 – 55 

Front Office (lights off) 15 – 20 

 

The engine bay is illuminated by 32 two-lamp T8 linear fluorescent fixtures, four of which remain 

on 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. The remaining fixtures in the engine bay area manually 

controlled by wall switches. 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 11 

 

Figure 2.9: New Firehouse Engine Bay Fluorescent Fixtures 

 

The Old Firehouse is illuminated by four 4-lamp linear T8 fluorescent fixtures. The well pump 

stations and WWTP maintenance garage and shed are also illuminated by linear T8 fluorescent 

fixtures. These buildings are occupied infrequently, and the lights are controlled manually by 

wall switches. 

Exterior Lighting 

Most of the buildings’ exterior areas are illuminated with a combination of metal halide and high 

pressure sodium (HPS) wall-pack fixtures. The WWTP aeration ponds are illuminated by five 

HPS pole-mounted fixtures. The exterior fixtures are controlled either by photocells or clock 

timers to operate only at night. 

 

Figure 2.10: Typical HPS Pole-Mounted 
Fixture at WWTP 

 

Figure 2.11: Typical MH Wallpack at Well 
Pump Station 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 12 

HVAC Systems 

The District Office and New Firehouse building is the only conditioned facility operated by the 

San Miguel CSD. The building is conditioned by a Carrier 6-ton packaged air handler (Model 

CK3BXA060024) located in the attic. The air handler is equipped with direct expansion (DX) 

cooling coils and a gas furnace. The conference room and back office were built recently as an 

addition to the original building. Although the air handler was not sized to accommodate the 

additional loads from these two spaces, ducting was routed to provide conditioned air. As a 

result, the conference room and back office are often under-cooled or under-heated, as they are 

the furthest spaces from the air handler. 

 

Figure 2.12: Carrier 6-ton Air Handler in Attic of District Office 

Wastewater System 

Wastewater is lifted from the headworks to aeration pond #1 by two submersible pumps. The 

wastewater subsequently flows by gravity through the remaining three aeration ponds before 

being discharged by gravity to the percolation ponds. The aeration ponds utilize mechanical 

surface aerators to provide oxygen, which promotes aerobic microbial digestion of organic 

material. The surface aerators consist of a single constant-speed motor and propeller mounted 

to a floatation device. Details of the WWTP equipment are listed in Table 2.3. 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 13 

Table 2.3: WWTP Equipment 

Device Name 
Motor Manufacturer and 

Model No. 
Qty 

Pump Motor 
(hp) 

Headworks Pumps Reliance RT8G2704 2 7.5 

Surface Aerator Pond #1 N/A 1 25 

Surface Aerator Pond #2 N/A 1 25 

Surface Aerator Pond #3 GE 5X6232XE1501A 1 7.5 

Surface Aerator Pond #4 GE 5X6232XE1501A 1 7.5 

 

 

Figure 2.13. Pond #1 Surface Aerator 

 

Figure 2.14. Headworks Pumps 

 

Freshwater System 

Fresh water is extracted by three well pump stations: Well Pump 3, Well Pump 4, and Well 
Pump 5 (also known as the Terrace well). Well pump 5 is the only pump equipped with a VFD, 
which is used for soft-start and maintaining pumping rates suitable for the existing arsenic 
treatment system. Details of the freshwater system pumps are listed in Table 2.4. 
 

Table 2.4: Freshwater Well Pumps 

Pump Name 
Manufacturer and 

Model No. 
Pump Type Qty 

Rated Flow 
(GPM) 

Pump Motor 
(hp) 

Well Pump 3 FloWay LKM Vertical Turbine 1 400 40 

Well Pump 4 Goulds 8RJHC-3 Submersible 1 650 60 

Well Pump 5 N/A Submersible 1 300 40 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 14 

3 Site Energy Use and Costs 

San Miguel CSD procures all of its electricity from PG&E, and purchases natural gas from 

Southern California Gas.   

3.1 Total Cost of Energy 

The total annual cost of electricity for San Miguel CSD is approximately $96,000. The District 

has 10 electricity meters serving the following systems: Buildings & Facilities, Wastewater, 

Fresh Water, and Landscaping & Streetlights. The annual cost of electricity for each system and 

site is summarized in Table 3.1. 

Table 3.1: Electricity Consumption and Cost by System and Site 

System 

System 

Consumption 

(kWh) 

Site Name 

Site 

Consumption 

(kWh) 

Site 

Electricity 

Cost ($) 

Tariff 

Structure 
SAID 

Buildings & Facilities 21,737 

New Fire Station and District 
Office 

21,695 $ 43,331 HA1X 3675186997 

Old Fire Station 42 $ 247 HA1X 3675186016 

Wastewater System 440,342 
WWTP 440,342 $ 57,632 HE19S 3675186391 

Lift Station (not used) 0 $ 120 HA1X 3675186306 

Fresh Water System 152,501 

Well #3 56,902 $ 10,754 HA1X 3675186644 

Well #4 91,677 $ 19134 HA1X 3675186078 

SLT Well 1,816 $ 591 HA1X 3675186489 

Reservoir 1,707 $ 452 HA1X 3675186608 

Booster Station 399 $ 193 HA1X 3675186325 

Landscaping & 
Streetlights 

14,455 Mission and 12th 14,455 $ 2,399 HA6 3675186477 

Totals 629,035  629,035 $ 95,734   

 

Buildings and Facilities   

Table 3.2 summarizes the 2014 monthly electricity consumption and cost for the Buildings and 

Facilities. Figure 3.1 shows the monthly usage of the buildings operated and maintained by San 

Miguel CSD. Peak demand (kW) was not reported in the billing data. 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 15 

Table 3.2: Monthly Peak Demand, Electricity Consumption, and Costs for Buildings & Facilities 

 

 

Month
Peak Demand

(kW)

 Electricity 

Consumption 

(kWh) 

 Total Electricity 

Cost ($) 

Jan-14 -                    1,607               271$                

Feb-14 -                    1,712               289$                

Mar-14 -                    1,662               280$                

Apr-14 -                    1,550               265$                

May-14 -                    1,774               379$                

Jun-14 -                    1,892               453$                

Jul-14 -                    2,683               631$                

Aug-14 -                    2,431               580$                

Sep-14 -                    2,072               494$                

Oct-14 -                    1,601               394$                

Nov-14 -                    1,425               305$                

Dec-14 -                    1,328               240$                

Annual Totals -                    21,737             4,579$             

$0.2107Average Cost of Electricity ($/kWh)



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 16 

 

Figure 3.1. Monthly Electricity Consumption of Buildings & Facilities 

The New Fire Station, which includes the District Office, constitutes over 99% of the overall 

Buildings & Facilities energy use. Electrical loads at the Old Fire Station consist of interior and 

exterior lighting, which are used infrequently, and consume less than 5 kWh per month. 

  

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

E
n

e
rg

y
 U

s
a

 (
k

W
h

)

New Fire Station Old Fire Station



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 17 

Wastewater System 

Table 3.3 summarizes the 2014 monthly peak demand, electricity consumption, and cost for the 

Wastewater System. The Wastewater System consists of the Wastewater Treatment Plant and 

the Lift Station. Although the Lift Station is no longer used (zero energy consumption), the 

electric meter is still active and was associated with $120 in fees during 2014. The Wastewater 

Treatment Plant is the largest energy consuming system operated by the District. 

Table 3.3: Monthly Peak Demand, Electricity Consumption, and Cost for Wastewater System 

 

 

  

Month
Peak Demand

(kW)

 Electricity 

Consumption 

(kWh) 

 Total Electricity 

Cost ($) 

Jan-14 54                  36,755             3,870$             

Feb-14 56                  40,903             4,299$             

Mar-14 56                  35,243             3,851$             

Apr-14 54                  36,142             3,946$             

May-14 55                  37,274             4,927$             

Jun-14 55                  36,282             5,521$             

Jul-14 56                  36,048             5,503$             

Aug-14 55                  38,430             5,719$             

Sep-14 55                  36,122             5,490$             

Oct-14 54                  33,996             5,370$             

Nov-14 55                  38,336             5,057$             

Dec-14 57                  34,811             4,078$             

Annual Totals 57                  440,342           57,632$           

$0.1309Average Cost of Electricity ($/kWh)



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 18 

Fresh Water System 

Table 3.4 summarizes the 2014 monthly peak demand, electricity consumption, and cost for the 

Fresh Water System, which consists of 3 well pumps, a booster station, and electrical loads at 

the reservoir (i.e., lighting, controls, and/or telemetry). Figure 3.2 shows the monthly electric 

usage patterns for each component of the Fresh Water System. Wells #3 and #4 constitute the 

vast majority of electrical loads in the Fresh Water System. 

Table 3.4: Monthly Peak Demand, Electricity Consumption and Cost for Fresh Water System 

 

 

Month
Peak Demand

(kW)

 Electricity 

Consumption 

(kWh) 

 Total Electricity 

Cost ($) 

Jan-14 -                    9,960               1,579$             

Feb-14 -                    10,707             1,692$             

Mar-14 -                    8,869               1,421$             

Apr-14 -                    10,264             1,646$             

May-14 -                    14,189             2,889$             

Jun-14 -                    15,997             3,657$             

Jul-14 -                    15,758             3,620$             

Aug-14 -                    16,965             3,909$             

Sep-14 -                    15,543             3,581$             

Oct-14 -                    13,888             3,257$             

Nov-14 -                    11,738             2,407$             

Dec-14 -                    8,623               1,466$             

Annual Totals -                    152,501           31,124$           

$0.2041Average Cost of Electricity ($/kWh)



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 19 

 

Figure 3.2. Monthly Electricity Consumption of Fresh Water System Components 

 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

December January February March April May June July August September October November

E
n

e
rg

y
 U

s
a

 (
k

W
h

)

Well #3 Well #4 SLT Well Reservoir Booster Station



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 20 

3.2 Electric Energy Balance 

An electric energy end-use breakdown was performed based on the District’s 2014 PG&E 

Billing Data. 

 

Figure 3.3. San Miguel CSD Electricity Energy Balance 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 21 

4 Energy Project Opportunities 

4.1 Energy Analysis Methodology 

kW Engineering performed an energy survey on-site to collect nameplate and operational data 

for mechanical equipment, the lighting systems, and to identify potential energy-efficiency 

measures. During the site visit, engineers collected the following data: 

 A partial inventory of lighting fixtures and controls 

 Mechanical system nameplate specifications and control means 

 Operation documents and mechanical drawings 

 Observations and photographs of conditions and controls. 

Level of Analysis 

The goal of this audit report is to provide an Energy Action Plan, which identifies potential 

energy projects, and guides the prioritization, grouping, and sequence of implementation of 

those projects. For this audit report, most measures have received only a preliminary analysis of 

feasibility, and expected ranges of savings and costs. This level of analysis is considered 

sufficient to make “Go/No-Go” decisions and to prioritize energy projects.  

Further analysis or investigation may be required to calculate more accurate savings to support 

many PG&E incentive applications. Various PG&E programs can provide further assistance 

where appropriate. Your PG&E Account Manager can help you apply for additional support. You 

will also need to obtain actual project cost estimates from vendors or contractors who supply 

equipment and install recommended measures. 

For most measures, this audit report provides rough ranges from “Low” to “High” of annual cost 

savings, rough project costs, potential incentives, and simple payback after incentives. These 

ranges are rough estimates based on simple analysis, similar projects, and the judgment of the 

auditing engineer. The auditing engineer will assign each estimate with a confidence rating 

corresponding to an expected accuracy range as follows: 

Confidence Rating Expected Accuracy Range 

Low ± 50% 

Medium ± 25% 

High ± 10% 

Measure Order 

There are interactive effects among several of the measures modeled in the analysis that may 

overstate or understate the savings for any individual measure. The sequence of measure 

implementation was that recommended by the California Energy Commission’s Guide to 

Preparing Feasibility Studies for Energy Efficiency Projects, which recommends analyzing 

measures that affect load first, and then working “upward” from load to plant. When reviewing 

the results of this report, please note that the best estimate of actual savings will be for the 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 22 

entire package of measures recommended. The savings of individual measures may be more or 

less than shown if not all of the other measures are implemented. 

4.2 No-Cost Measures (NCM) 

No-cost measures are energy conservation, energy efficiency, or time-of-use management 

projects that have no associated cost (not including internal labor). These measures reduce 

energy usage and costs with no capital investment, except for the time and effort of the on-site 

maintenance personnel.  

We did not identify any no-cost measures for San Miguel CSD. 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 23 

4.3 Low-Cost Measures (LCM) 

Low-cost measures are energy conservation, energy efficiency, or time-of-use management 

projects with a capital cost of less than $10,000. These measures significantly reduce energy 

consumption and costs while requiring relatively little capital investment. Below is the list of low 

cost measures (LCMs) identified for San Miguel CSD: 

 LCM-1: Replace Interior Halogen, Incandescent, and CFL Downlights with LEDs 

 LCM-2: Upgrade Exterior Metal Halide, CFL, and Halogen Fixtures with LEDs with 
Bi-Level Controls 

 LCM-3: Install Premium Efficiency Motors as Motors Need Replacement 

 
  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 24 

LCM-1: Replace Interior Halogen, Incandescent, and CFL Downlights with LEDs 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Installed Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$20 $44 $0 2.2 

Observations 

San Miguel’s District Office is illuminated by a combination of linear fluorescent lamps and CFL 

downlights. There are four downlight fixtures. All of the fixtures are manually controlled with wall 

switches.  

  

Figure 4.1. Sanitation District Office Recessed Downlights 

Recommendations 

We recommend replacing the existing interior downlights with LED equivalent lamps. LED spot 

lamps offer a variety of compelling reasons for installation: 

1. LED spot lamps typically consume 40% less power than their CFL equivalents to 

produce the same light output.  

2. Due to the reduced power consumption, the heat output is also reduced by 40%.  

3. LED lamps have longer life span compared to halogen lamps. A typical halogen lamp 

lasts 6,000 – 10,000 hours, whereas LED lamp equivalents last 25,000 - 50,000 hours.  

Implementation Notes 

We recommend conducting a feasibility study before replacing all the downlights in the District 

Office.  

 Glare Abatement: LED fixtures can have significant glare issues depending on the 
viewing angle between the observer and the fixture. Care needs to be taken to 
prevent installing a fixture with excessive glare. We recommend a sample fixture 
installation to identify and address this potential issue prior to completing the retrofit. 

 Quality Fixture Selection: We recommend selecting LED fixtures that are listed on 
the Qualified Product List (QPL) of the DesignLights Consortium (DLC), which 
collects test data for various fixtures to ensure high-quality fixtures are selected for 
LED incentive programs. In addition, the fixtures would preferably be from a reliable, 
well-known manufacturer to ensure that warranty issues will be promptly addressed 
in the future. 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 25 

Costs and Assumptions 

Energy savings were calculated using the lighting inventory estimated during the site visit and 

standard wattage based on fixture type. We estimated the lighting operating hours based on the 

building operating hours.  

We estimated the cost for the 11-watt LED lamps using cost estimates from online lighting 

distributors. We assumed installation can be performed in-house by maintenance staff; 

therefore, no labor cost is included.  

Screw-in LED lamps are not eligible incentives or rebates through PG&E. 

 
  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 26 

LCM-2: Upgrade Exterior Metal Halide, CFL, and Halogen Fixtures with LEDs with Bi-Level Controls 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Installed Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$1,300 $7,500 $830 5.1 

Observations 

Exterior lights at San Miguel CSD’s Old Firehouse, Well pump #4, and WWTP consist of metal 

halide (MH) wall pack fixtures and high pressure sodium (HPS) pole-mounted fixtures. All of 

these high-intensity discharge (HID) exterior fixtures are controlled with either photocells or 

timers to operate only at night.  

   

Figure 4.2. WWTP HPS (left), WWTP MH wall pack (center), Well pump 4 MH wall packs (right) 

Recommendations 

We recommend replacing the existing exterior HID fixtures with LED fixtures. LED fixtures 

provide more efficient distribution of light than HID fixtures. While LED and HID fixtures provide 

similar lumens light output per watt of power used, LED fixtures have a photometric efficiency of 

100%, whereas only a fraction of the input power for a HID fixture is converted to light. 

Therefore, LED fixtures provide significantly higher lumens per watt compared to the total 

luminaire efficacy of an equivalent HID fixture. 

We recommend installing wall pack LED fixtures with integrated photocells and occupancy 

sensors, since these two modes of control are required for exterior fixtures mounted <24 feet 

high, per 2013 Title 24. Title 24 code will be triggered when replacing more than 50% of exterior 

fixtures.  

Although adding bi-level occupancy sensors to the pole-mounted fixtures would reduce the 

fixture light output when parts of the outdoor areas are unoccupied and provide additional 

energy savings, we do not recommend bi-level occupancy sensors because the existing pole 

height (>24 ft) at the WWTP would require microwave sensor technology to detect motion, 

which is not cost effective at this time.  

Implementation Notes 

Implementing this measure will trigger 2013 Title 24, where a permit would be required for 

construction. The outdoor lighting must be controlled by photocells or astronomical time-switch, 

and must be separately circuited from exterior electrical loads.  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 27 

There are a few key implementation criteria necessary for a successful retrofit. 

 Good Lighting Design: LED fixtures provide better light distribution uniformity (higher 
minimum light levels and lower maximum light levels). Leveraging the light 
distribution efficiency is only possible when a lighting model is made of the 
application area. It is important to consider multiple vendors in order to get the best 
lighting installation. A third party lighting designer or a lighting representative of 
multiple outdoor fixture manufacturers will provide the best results. Many contractors 
and vendors will do this as part of their scope; however, they are often interested in 
selling either specific products. Good design practices require: 

o Reasonable Illuminance (foot-candle) Targets: Providing excessive light 
levels in parking lots can result in wasted energy use. Recommended 
minimum light levels from IESNA list 0.2 horizontal fc at grade for most 
parking lot applications. For high-security parking or areas where increased 
security is a concern, the IESNA recommends a minimum of 0.5 horizontal fc 
at grade.1 

o Reasonable Light Loss Factors: The lighting designer should use IES 
guidelines and industry best practices for assigning light loss factors. At 
minimum, this should include a reasonable luminaire lumen depreciation 
factor (LLD) and luminaire dirt depreciation (LDD). For LEDs, the IESNA 
recommend a LLD of 0.7. For 8 year maintenance cycles in areas with 
moderate to heavy traffic and no significant sources of smoke or particulate 
generation, the IESNA recommend using a 0.8 LDD factor.2 Combined, this 
means San Miguel CSD should de-rate any new LED product light-output by 
44% to ensure the persistence of good light levels.  

To decrease the derating factor, San Miguel CSD would need to plan on 
more frequent cleaning maintenance or plan on replacing the LED fixtures 
earlier. Excluding these aggressive de-rating factors will result in lower light 
levels at the end of product life and under-performance of the new lighting 
system. 

 Glare Abatement: LED fixtures can have significant glare issues depending on the 
viewing angle between the observer and the fixture. Care needs to be taken to 
prevent installing a fixture with excessive glare. We recommend a sample fixture 
installation to identify and address this potential issue prior to completing the retrofit. 

 Note that LED fixtures must be listed on the California Statewide Lighting Program 
Qualified LED Products List (http://www.lightingfacts.com/ca) in order to qualify for 
utility incentives.  

 Quality Fixture Selection: We recommend selecting LED fixtures that are listed on 
the Qualified Product List (QPL) of the DesignLights Consortium (DLC), which 
collects test data for various fixtures to ensure high-quality fixtures are selected for 
LED incentive programs. In addition, the fixtures would preferably be from a reliable, 
well-known manufacturer to ensure that warranty issues will be promptly addressed 
in the future. 

                                                
1 IESNA RP-20-98 “Recommended Practices for Lighting for Parking Facilities” page 3 
2 IESNA DG-4-03 “Design Guide for Roadway Lighting Maintenance”, page 3 

http://www.lightingfacts.com/ca


 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 28 

Costs and Assumptions 

Energy savings were calculated using the lighting inventory estimated during the site visit and 

standard wattage based on fixture type. We assumed that the proposed pole-mounted LED 

fixtures would draw approximately 40% of the existing HID lamp wattage. For fixtures under bi-

level control, we assumed an input power reduction of 40% for 45% of their annual hours, and 

at full output for the remaining hours. 

We estimated the fixture cost based on vendor quote, and installation cost based on 2014 RS 

Means Electrical Cost Data for San Louis Obispo area. 

We estimated the potential incentive based on the PG&E Lighting Rebate Catalog, which gives 

a $60/fixture rebate for LEDs between 70 and 110 watts (Rebate Code LT012), and $70/fixtures 

for LEDs between 110 and 150 watts (Rebate Code LT013).  

 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 29 

LCM-3: Install Premium Efficiency Motors as Motors Need Replacement 

Observations & Analysis Scope 

In general, efficiency gain between standard and premium efficiency motor is 2-3%. DOE 

studies have shown that retrofitting equipment that operates for less than 1,000 hours with 

premium efficiency motors typically do not pay back within the equipment or motor’s life time, 

due to the small incremental efficiency improvement. Therefore, we focused on analyzing San 

Miguel CSD’s equipment that operates more than 1,000 hours annually, which includes the 

WWTP surface aerators, headworks pumps and freshwater well pumps. Table 4.1 shows the 

standard and premium motor efficiencies of the existing equipment.   

Table 4.1: San Miguel CSD Equipment Motor Efficiencies 

System Site Name Motor Type 
Motor Size 

(hp) 
Motor Qty 

Standard 

Motor 

Efficiency 

Premium 

Motor 

Efficiency 

WWTP 

Headworks Pumps Submersible 7.5 1 89.5% 91.7% 

Aerator Pond #1 General Purpose 25 1 92.4% 93.6% 

Aerator Pond #2 General Purpose 25 1 92.4% 93.6% 

Aerator Pond #3 General Purpose 7.5 1 89.5% 91.7% 

Aerator Pond #4 General Purpose 7.5 1 89.5% 91.7% 

Well Pumps 

Well #3 General Purpose 40 1 93.0% 94.1% 

Well #4 Submersible 60 1 93.6% 95.0% 

Well #5 General Purpose 40 1 93.0% 94.1% 

 

Please note:  

 Submersible pump motors are customized by the pump manufacturer, and their 
standard efficiencies do not follow those defined by the Energy Policy Act (2007 
EPAct). We used baseline efficiencies from the pump manufacturer specifications. 

Recommendation  

We recommend replacing the existing motors with premium efficiency motors for the WWTP 

surface aerators, headworks pumps and freshwater well pumps listed in Table 4.1 above, as the 

equipment or motor needs replacement. Premium efficiency motors reduce the amount of 

energy that is converted to heat through the use of steel with better magnetic qualities, larger 

diameter winding wires, and better bearings. With less heat generation, less of the motor’s 

output is required to cool the windings with an internal fan, further improving its energy 

efficiency.  

Costs and Assumptions 

We calculated the baseline energy usage based on motor size, quantity, an assumed load 

factor, motor efficiency, and operating hours as provided by SMCSD, or determined from lift 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Incremental Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$900 $4,400 $0 4.9 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 30 

station and well pump analysis. The baseline motor efficiency of each motor is based on its 

motor nameplate or manufacturer’s specifications. The proposed energy usage is calculated in 

a similar manner. For general purpose motors, we assumed NEMA premium efficiency. For 

submersible motors, we assumed a 5% efficiency gain between standard and premium 

efficiency motors, based on conversation with a submersible pump manufacturer.    

We estimated the incremental costs to retrofit the existing equipment with premium efficiency 

motors based on manufacturer’s cost data.  

Since the proposed motor efficiency do not exceed 2007 EPAct requirements (NEMA MG-1 

Table 12-12), this measure is not eligible for incentives. 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 31 

4.4 Capital-Intensive Measures (CIM) 

Capital-intensive measures are energy conservation, energy efficiency, or time-of-use 

management projects with a capital cost of greater than $10,000. These measures significantly 

reduce energy consumption and costs, but also require significant capital investment. Below is 

the list of capital intensive measures (CIMs) identified for San Miguel CSD: 

 CIM-3: Retrofit Surface Aerators with VFDs and Use Existing DO Sensors to 
Automatically Modulate Aeration of Treatment Ponds 

 CIM-4: Install Higher Efficiency Aerators 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 32 

CIM-4: Retrofit Surface Aerators with VFDs and Use Existing DO Sensors to Automatically Modulate 
Aeration of Treatment Ponds 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Installed Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$4,500 $27,000 $2,400 5.5 

Observations 

Aeration of the wastewater ponds is provided by four 

mechanical surface aerators. The purpose of aeration is to 

enable biological degradation of organic solids in the 

wastewater. Each of the four ponds has a single floating 

turbine aerator. Aerators in Ponds #1 and 2 operate 

continuously to dissolve as much oxygen into the 

wastewater as possible. Aerators in Ponds #3 and 4 are 

controlled by a timer to operate 12 hours per day at night. 

 

Figure 4.3. Surface Mechanical Turbine Aerator in Pond 1 

Recommendations 

We recommend installing DO sensors and variable 

frequency drives (VFDs) on the aerators in ponds #3 and 4 

and controlling their speeds based on the DO levels. The 

VFD would modulate the aerator motor speed based on 

aeration demand. Energy savings can be achieved by 

operating aerators at a lower speed. 

Costs and Assumptions 

We calculated the energy savings for this measure as the 

difference between the energy consumed by the existing 

mechanical aerators and the proposed mechanical aerators 

with VFD control. Since historic biological oxygen demand 

Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) 

on Aerators Motors: 

Variable flow systems have become 

more common with the advent of 

using variable frequency drives 

(VFD) to control the speed of pumps, 

mixers, surface aerators, blowers 

and compressors. 

Pumps and aeration equipment are 

the largest users of electricity in 

wastewater treatment systems. For a 

system that operates with variable 

aeration demand, controlling the 

aeration motor speed with VFDs can 

reduce its energy use at part-load 

operation. 

Aerators operate essentially similar 

to a pump or fan. Pump affinity laws 

state that pump power decreases 

exponentially by a power of three as 

the speed decreases. Slowing an 

aerator by even 10% reduces its 

power demand by about one-

quarter.  

Non-energy related benefits include 

reduced vibration and noise, and 

prolonged equipment life.  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 33 

(BOD) and DO data was not available, we assumed the existing effluent from pond #4 is 4 

mg/L. The District’s permit allows effluent concentrations between 1 and 4 mg/L. Therefore, we 

assumed a proposed DO target of 2 mg/L, which we assumed could be achieved by operating 

the aerators in ponds #3 and 4 at 50% speed for the same duration. 

Implementing this measure would involve installing two VFDs, adding controllers to connect the 

VFDs to the new DO sensors, and adding an outdoor electrical panel. The VFD would modulate 

the aerator motor speed based on the DO demand. We estimated the cost of this measure with 

a vendor quote.  

This measure is classified as retrofit add-on (REA) measure. The baseline for this measure is 

mechanical surface aerators without DO control. The existing surface aerators are believed to 

be beyond their effective useful life (EUL). However, if the customer can produce maintenance 

records showing that the aerators are regularly maintained and are in good operating condition, 

then these documents can be used to justify that the aerators have remaining useful life (RUL) 

and may be eligible for customized retrofit incentives from PG&E.  

We estimated the potential incentive at $0.08 per kWh and $150 per peak kW for Basic Non-

Lighting measures.  Please see the following link for information on applying for customized 

(calculated) incentives: 

www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/rebatesincentives/ief/   

  

http://www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/rebatesincentives/ief/


 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 34 

CIM-5: Install Higher Efficiency Aerators 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Incremental Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$36,700 $128,000 $0 3.5 

 
Observations  

The WWTP has uses aerobic ponds for microbial treatment 

of wastewater. Raw sewage is pumped into the first pond 

(#1) and the sewage flows by gravity through ponds #2, 3, 

and 4 before discharging to percolation ponds. Each pond is 

aerated by a single mechanical surface aerator. Ponds #1 

and 2 each has a 25-hp aerator, while ponds #3 and 4 each 

have a 7.5-hp aerator. The surface aerators in Ponds #1 

and 2 are shown in Figure 4.4, below. 

 

Figure 4.4: Pond #1 Aerator (foreground), and Pond #2 

Aerator (background) 

The aerators in ponds #1 and 2 are controlled on/off to 

maintain a dissolved oxygen (DO) level of 1 - 4 mg/L. 

According to the plant operator, the first two ponds almost 

never exceed setpoint (4 mg/L) so these aerators operate 

24 hours per day, 365 days per year. The aerators are 

controlled by timeclocks to operate from daily 7 p.m. to 7 

a.m. 

According to the District, the WWTP struggles to fully treat 

wastewater during high influent flows. The District is 

studying process changes to meet future operating 

                                                
3 EPA 1999, Wastewater technology fact sheet, fine bubble aeration. EPA 832-F-99-065. Washington, 
D.C.: United States Environmental Protection Agency 

Fine Pore Bubble Diffusers3: 

Advantages 

• Exhibit high oxygen transfer 

efficiencies (OTEs). 

• Exhibit high aeration efficiencies (mass 
of oxygen transferred per unit power per 
unit time). 

• Can satisfy high oxygen demands. 

• Are easily adaptable to existing basins 
for plant upgrades. 

Disadvantages 

• Fine pore diffusers are susceptible to 
chemical or biological fouling, which may 
impair transfer efficiency and generate 
high head loss. As a result they require 
routine cleaning. 

• Fine pore diffusers may be susceptible 
to chemical attack. Therefore, care must 
be exercised in the proper selection of 
materials for a given wastewater. 

• Because of high efficiencies of the fine 
pore diffusers at low aeration rates, 
airflow distribution is critical to their 
performance and selection of proper 
airflow control orifices is important. 

• Because of high efficiencies of the fine 
pore diffusers required airflow in an 
aeration basin (normally at the effluent 
end) may be dictated by mixing – not 
oxygen transfer. 

• Aeration basin design must incorporate 
a means to easily dewater the tank 
(pond) for cleaning. In small systems 
where no redundancy of aeration tanks 
exists, and in-situ, nonprocess-
interruptive method of cleaning must be 
considered. 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 35 

conditions including increased influent BOD and flow from residential growth. One of the 

secondary treatment technologies being considered is suspended-growth activated sludge 

process using submerged aeration. 

Note that CIM-4 recommends controlling the existing surface aerators in ponds #3 and 4 based 

on measured DO level. These two measures are mutually exclusive and this measure cannot be 

implemented in conjunction with CIM-4. 

Recommendations 

We recommend replacing the mechanical surface aerators with a submerged aeration system 

using fine pore bubble diffusers. Fine pore bubble diffusers generate small air bubbles (< 5 

mm), which increases the interfacial area between water and the oxygen molecules in air. The 

increase in interfacial area of smaller bubbles compared using the mechanical aerators to 

break-up the pond surface to aerate results in significantly higher oxygen transfer rates. 

Increasing the oxygen transfer rate reduces the amount influent that can be treated while 

reducing the amount of motor power required to aerate.  

Costs and Assumptions 

We calculated the energy savings for this measure based on the difference between the amount 

of energy usage of the four surface aerators and the proposed blower used to supply air to the 

fine pore bubble diffusers.  We estimated the current energy usage of the aerators based on 

motor nameplate data, operating hours and estimated motor load factor.  

We assumed oxygen transfer efficiency (OTE) of 15% for fine pore bubble diffusers based on 

the data in Metcalf & Eddy, Wastewater Engineering, treatment and reuse4. We estimated 

blower efficiency and motor efficiency based on manufacturer’s data. 

In aeration basins sufficient mixing is required both to disperse DO throughout the basin and to 

provide uniform solids concentration throughout the liquid5. For fine bubble aeration devices, 

mixing energy often dictates aeration energy requirement rather than oxygen demand. A rule-of-

thumb for the mixing requirements are based on airflow per unit volume, such as 10 to 15 

cfm/1000 ft3. Our analysis is based on maintaining a minimum mixing requirement to prevent 

solids deposition. 

We estimated the cost of this measure based on the EPA’s Design Manual for Fine Pore 

Aeration Systems (EPA/625/1-89/023), which lists the costs for a fine pore bubble diffuser 

aeration system, adjusted for WWTP design capacity (MGD) and inflation. Adders for 

contingency and design and engineering costs have been included too. 

This measure is classified as a normal replacement (NR) measure since the existing surface 

aerators are believed to be beyond their effective useful life (EUL). The baseline aeration 

technology for pond aerobic treatment systems of this size (0.20 MGD) is taken to be 

                                                
4 Metcalf & Eddy. Wastewater engineering, treatment and reuse, 4th Ed. 2003. Chapter 5, Physical unit 
operations. New York: McGraw-Hill 
5 Mueller, James A., W. C. Boyle, and H. J. Pöpel. 2002. Aeration: principles and practice, Chapter 3.4.4 
Mixing characteristics. New York: CRC Press 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 36 

mechanical surface aerators. However, since the District is planning on expanding the capacity 

of the WWTP to handle future growth, we have taken the baseline aeration technology for small 

size (>0.40 MGD) aerobic treatment systems to be course bubble diffused aeration. Therefore, 

the incentible energy savings will be the difference in energy consumption between a course 

bubble aeration and fine pore bubble aeration systems. 

We estimated the potential incentive at $0.08 per kWh and $150 per peak kW for Basic Non-

Lighting measures.  Please see the following link for information on applying for customized 

(calculated) incentives: 

www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/rebatesincentives/ief/  

 
  

http://www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/rebatesincentives/ief/


 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 37 

4.5 Not Recommended Measures (NRM) 

Not recommended measures are energy conservation, energy efficiency, or time-of-use 

management projects have simple paybacks greater than 10 years. These measures have 

significant capital investments that result in lengthy payback periods. Below is the list of not 

recommended measures (NRMs) identified for San Miguel CSD: 

NRM-6: Install High Efficiency Pumps at Headworks 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Installed Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$100 $12,000 $100 118.6 

Observations 

The existing two lift pumps at the WWTP headworks operate at approximately 51% efficiency, 

based on the operating point we identified on the manufacturer’s pump curve. Only one of the 

pumps operates at any given time. 

Analysis 

Premium efficiency pumps would reduce losses at the headworks lift station, requiring less 

energy to pump the same amount of influent to the aeration ponds. We analyzed the effect of 

installing premium efficiency pumps at the headworks by assuming a premium efficiency pump 

would operate at 60% efficiency, compared to existing 51% efficiency. We estimate that 

replacing the two existing lift pumps with high efficiency pumps would result in cost savings of 

approximately $100 annually. 

Costs and Assumptions 

We used the manufacturer’s pump curve to estimate the existing pump efficiency based on well 

and pump parameters obtained from drawings (well diameter), the pump controller (pump on/off 

setpoints, flow rate) and operation logs (operating hours). We assumed an EPAct minimum 

motor efficiency of 90%. We assumed a best possible pump efficiency of 60% based on industry 

experience. 

We obtained a vendor quote for two premium efficiency pumps sized for the headworks, which 

totals approximately $12,000. The high capital cost of premium efficiency pumps results in a 

payback greater than 10 years. Therefore, we do not recommend implementing this measure for 

energy savings alone, but we do recommend installing premium efficiency pumps when the 

existing pumps need replacement. 

We estimated the potential incentive at $0.08 per kWh and $150 per peak kW for Basic Non-

Lighting measures. Please see the following link for information on applying for customized 

(calculated) incentives: 

http://www.pge.com/en/mybusiness/save/rebates/ief/index.page 

  

http://www.pge.com/en/mybusiness/save/rebates/ief/index.page


 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 38 

NRM-7: Install Photocells to Reduce Lighting Levels in Areas with Sufficient Daylighting 

Observations 

The District Office front office area is 

illuminated by four 4-ft T8 fluorescent light 

fixtures. The office also has large west-facing 

windows, which provide a significant amount 

of light during daytime. However, the light 

fixtures continue to operate even if there is 

sufficient natural light. We measured 55 

footcandles of light on the office desks with the 

window blinds open and the lights on. We 

measured 20 footcandles of light on the office 

desks with the window blinds open and the 

light off. 

Analysis 

We analyzed the savings associated with dimming the fluorescent light fixtures using a photocell 

to reduce light output when daylighting levels are sufficient. The setpoint should be adjusted to 

maintain at least 30 footcandles (fc) at desk level. The sensors should be programmed with a 

large enough deadband (at least 40%) to ensure that there will not be excessive switching of the 

lights on days with varying ambient light. To achieve control of lighting fixtures, a certified 

electrician may have to re-wire lighting circuitry so that appropriate lighting fixtures will be 

controlled by the sensors. 

Energy savings resulting from this measure would be small and the payback would be too long 

to justify (>11 years), so we do not recommend this measure for energy savings alone. 

Costs and Assumptions 

We estimated the cost of material and installation based on cost estimates from other similar 

projects. We also included contingency, design and commissioning costs. This measure is not 

eligible for incentives. 

  

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Installed Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$50 $500 $0 11.4 

Daylighting: 

Daylighting is the practice of using only daylight to 

meet the lighting requirements in a localized space. 

Daylighting can be accomplished with switching or 

dimming. Switched daylighting controls will turn off 

lamps within a fixture. Dimmed daylighting controls 

will uniformly reduce the lighting in all of the lamps 

of a fixture. Switched controls are generally the 

most cost effective daylighting option; while 

dimming controls offer a seamless transition from 

artificial lighting. 

 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 39 

NRM-8: Install High Efficiency Pumps at Well Pumps #3 and #4 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Installed Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$0 $24,500 $0 N/A 

Observations 

The existing well pumps at wells #3 and #4 operate at approximately 79% and 78% efficiency, 

respectively, based on the operating point we identified on the manufacturer’s pump curve.  

Analysis 

We analyzed the effect of replacing these well pumps using a pump selection software using the 

flows and head we observed during the site visit. The pump selection software estimated 

pumping efficiencies of 74% and 77% at wells #3 and #4, respectively. Therefore, replacing 

these well pumps would not result in energy savings. 

Costs and Assumptions 

We obtained a vendor quote for two premium efficiency pumps sized for the well pumps #3 and 

#4. The estimated cost to install each pumps is $12,300. We do not recommend implementing 

this measure because based on our analysis, replacing these pumps would not generate energy 

savings.  

NRM-9: Install VFDs at Well Pumps #3 and #4 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Installed Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$230 $43,800 $0 109 

Observations 

Well pumps #3 and 4 operate at constant speed to maintain the freshwater storage tank. The 

pumps turn on when the water tank level falls below 11 feet, and shut off when the tank level 

exceeds 14 feet.  

Analysis 

We analyzed the effect of retrofitting the pump motors at wells #3 and 4 with VFDs. Installing 

VFDs on the pumps motors at well pumps #3 and 4 would allow the pumps to operate at 

reduced speeds and maintain a constant tank level of 11 feet. This operation would reduce the 

operating head pressure by 3 feet of water column, which results in less pumping power. 

Costs and Assumptions 

This measure would involve replacing the existing pump motors with premium efficiency 

inverter-duty motors equipped with VFDs. The high capital cost of premium efficiency motors 

and VFDs (approximately $43,800) results in a payback greater than 10 years. Therefore, we do 

not recommend implementing this measure for energy savings alone, but we do recommend 

installing premium efficiency motors and VFDs when the existing pump motors need 

replacement.  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 40 

4.6 Load Management Measures (LMM) 

Electricity prices fluctuate throughout the day as the grid-wide demand for energy changes. 

Between the late morning to late afternoon, electricity demand increases and utilities purchase 

electricity from steadily more expensive producers as they exhaust lower-cost alternatives. 

Utilities, in turn, pass these costs back to their customers in the form of Time-of-Use (TOU) 

electricity rates. 

Load management is the practice of implementing or scheduling activities to reduce energy 

consumption in the hours of higher electricity pricing. Load management measures identify 

opportunities for customers to schedule, shift, or otherwise reduce energy consumption during 

those periods. 

As shown in Table 4.2, San Miguel CSD has electric meters on Time-of-Use tariffs with the 

following time periods: 

Table 4.2: Time of Use Time Periods 

Summer May 1st through October 31st  

Peak 12:00 PM to 6:00 PM Monday through Friday (except holidays) 

Partial-Peak 
8:30 AM to 12:00 Noon and 

6:00 PM to 9:30 PM 
Monday through Friday (except holidays) 

Off-Peak 
9:30 PM to 8:30 AM  

All Day 
Monday through Friday, Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays 

Winter November 1st through April 30th  

Partial-Peak 8:30 AM to 9:30 PM Monday through Friday (except holidays) 

Off-Peak 
9:30 PM to 8:30 AM 

All Day 

Monday through Friday (except holidays) 

Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays 

 
  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 41 

LMM-1: Shift Water Pumping Out of the Peak Period 

Average Load Shift by Period  Annual Savings  Costs and Payback 

Summer 
Peak 
(kW) 

Summer 
Part-Peak 

(kW) 

Winter 
 Part-Peak 

(kW) 

Demand Cost 
Savings 
 ($/yr) 

Energy Cost 
Savings 
 ($/yr) 

Total Cost 
Savings 
 ($/yr) 

Measure 
Cost 
($) 

Simple 
Payback 
(years) 

19.8 0.0 0.0 $0 $537 $537 $42,000 78 

Observations 

The vast majority of San Miguel’s water is supplied by Wells #3 & 4. Each of these wells is 

served electricity through PG&E’s HA-1X electric rate, which is a time-of-use (TOU) rate for 

small general service customers. The HA-1X rate varies the cost of electricity ($/kWh) by time 

period, but does not have monthly demand charges ($/kW). Current HA-1X rates are shown in 

Table 4.3, below. 

Table 4.3: HA-1X Rate Periods and Energy Charges 

Summer May 1st through October 31st  Energy Charges 

Peak 12:00 PM to 6:00 PM Weekdays (except holidays) $0.26241/kWh 

Partial-Peak 
8:30 AM to 12:00 PM  

Weekdays (except holidays) $0.25308/kWh 
6:00 PM to 9:30 PM 

Off-Peak 
9:30 PM to 8:30 AM Weekdays (except holidays) 

$0.22468/kWh 
All Day Weekends and Holidays 

Winter November 1st through April 30th  Energy Charges 

Partial-Peak 8:30 AM to 9:30 PM  Weekdays (except holidays) $0.17479/kWh 

Off-Peak 
9:30 PM to 8:30 AM Weekdays (except holidays) 

$0.15497/kWh 
All Day Weekends and Holidays 

 

 

Figure 4.5. Well #3 Pump Controller (left) and Well #4 Pump Controller (right) 

Currently, each well is locally controlled to start and stop based on the water level of elevated 

storage tanks connected to the water distribution system. The local pump controllers for Wells 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 42 

#3 & 4 are shown in Figure 4.5, on the previous page. The storage tanks have a total of 650,000 

gallons of capacity and it is estimated that 75% of the capacity is reserved for fire prevention.  

Recommendations 

Installing a supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system would allow the well 

pumps to operate on a scheduled that prevents the pumps from operating during the Peak 

period. The SCADA should be programmed to fill the water storage tanks during the Off-Peak 

when energy costs are lower. The SCADA should also be programmed to only run the well 

pumps if the minimum water level needed for fire protection is reached. Otherwise, the well 

pumps won’t run and the water stored in the tanks will provide the water for San Miguel CSD. 

Due to high capital costs associated with installing the SCADA system, we do not recommend 

implementing this measure for energy savings alone.  

Costs and Assumptions 

We were unable to get interval data for the two electric meters, which would have shown typical 

daily pumping patterns for each well. Instead, we have analyzed monthly electric usage data for 

each summer month (May – October) to estimate the average monthly volume of water pumped 

by each well. A residential diurnal water usage pattern was used to estimate the volume of 

water used in San Miguel during a typical summer Peak period (see Figure 4.6). This volume 

was compared to the available usable capacity in the storage tanks to estimate the average 

pumped water load that could be shifted out of the Peak period and into the Off-Peak period. 

 

Figure 4.6. Residential Diurnal Water Usage Pattern 

The average pumping flow rate that can be shifted due to using tank storage capacity is 254 

GPM. 

The measure cost was estimated based on a quote from a vendor.  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 43 

4.7 Demand Response Measures (DRM) 

Demand Response (DR) is the altering of your routine to reduce your electric demand, when 

requested during a few critical-peak demand hours of the year, thereby earning monthly 

capacity payment incentives or actual-event load reduction performance incentives.   

In California, as in other states, the total electricity demand rises to its highest peaks only 40-80 

hours of the year (less than 1% of all hours). Primarily this occurs during the hottest weather of 

the year, in the late afternoon hours. 

DR measures – also known as load curtailment, peak load reduction, or load shedding – are 

special measures you implement to reduce or shift electricity use out of extraordinary peak 

system demand hours. This is very important for California’s electrical system because meeting 

the highest peaks of demand requires that special “peaker” generation plants be built for rare 

use, or that special electricity purchasing be arranged. Both of these options are expensive and 

often represent sources of electricity that contribute to greenhouse gas emissions. DR, another 

option for dealing with the system’s critical peak demand, has participating customers reduce 

their demand on request and receive incentives to do so. Compared to building more power 

plants or seeking more out-of-state power, the demand response option is cleaner for the 

environment and less costly to California’s electricity users. 

 

Figure 4.7. Sample Peak kW Profile (left); with Demand Response Measures (right) 

We encourage you to engage in DR efforts not only to receive the various financial rewards, but 

also to help keep California’s electrical system reliable, clean and cost-effective even when 

demand is highest. In addition, developing your demand response capabilities now when it is 

optional will help you keep your business’s energy costs in check in the future when mandatory 

real time pricing may be implemented. Real time pricing would mean that energy users are 

more directly exposed to the real-time price swings of the wholesale electricity market. In that 

market, demand spikes can lead to price spikes. 

To encourage demand response, financial incentives are offered for participating in a DR 

program and for the investment in technology that enables participation in DR. First, DR 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 44 

participation programs reward customers who shed load during special DR events. There is a 

variety of these programs whereby participating customers respond to a signal to reduce 

demand in return for a variety of ongoing financial incentives that reflect the value of what the 

customer is providing:  response time and certainty of load reduction delivery. Most programs 

signal a DR event by sending a notification the day before the event. Other programs (offering 

higher incentives) may request a demand reduction only minutes ahead of the need, and may 

send a request signal directly to a customer’s building or process control system. 

Secondly, DR-enabling technology incentives are one-time resources that help pay for software, 

equipment, or controls that enable DR measures to be implemented readily and reliably when 

needed. In addition, such new controls will often provide other benefits as well, allowing an 

operation or building to be better managed every day. For DR enablement incentives, there are 

two options: 

 Auto-DR will pay $250 (or more) per kW of potential DR reduction to cover the 
installation or upgrade of an energy management system and/or controls to receive 
direct DR signals that activate your DR load reduction measures. 

 Semi-automated DR will pay $125 per kW of potential DR reduction that is enabled 
by the new or upgraded software, equipment, or controls without the use of direct DR 
signals. 

DR measures in this energy audit are candidates for DR-enabling technology incentives if 

included in the Payback section of the summary tables for DR Measures. We encourage you to 

work with your PG&E account representative to evaluate the many DR participation and DR-

enabling technology incentive programs offered. Current demand response participation options 

include the following:  

Demand Bidding Program (DBP) – In this low-risk program, you receive notice of a DR event by 

noon the day before. You then submit your expected bid reduction amount by 3pm. The 

incentive is $0.50 per kW per hour reduction, and there are no penalties for non-performance.   

Peak Day Pricing (PDP) – Peak Day Pricing is now the default energy tariff for many large 

customers. This option works with Time of Use energy pricing and provides discounts on both 

your energy and demand charges for nearly all of the summer hours from May through October. 

On PDP event days (9-15 per year) your energy will cost an extra $1.20 per kWh between 2 pm 

and 6pm, encouraging DR load reduction actions on those days and hours.  

Base Interruptible Program (BIP) – The Base Interruptible Program (BIP) is for facilities 

managed with a strong understanding and commitment to DR. BIP pays you generous 

incentives to be available when notified to reduce your facility's load to or below a committed 

level that is pre-selected by you. This pre-selected level is called the Firm Service Level (FSL) 

and it can be set only once a year. BIP gives you 30 minutes advance notice, but pays you 

between $8.00/kW to $9.00/kW of committed load reduction per month, depending on the 

amount of your committed load reduction. You will receive a monthly incentive payment even if 

no events are called, but there are financial penalties for under-performance during any event. 



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 45 

Aggregator Programs – Aggregators are independent third parties authorized to work with 

PG&E to reduce the state's energy usage during periods of peak demand, high wholesale-

electrical prices, system constraints, and emergencies. Join a group of customers and pool your 

resources to achieve higher demand reductions and enjoy unique incentive structures. Acting as 

intermediaries between you and PG&E, aggregators offer you unique demand response 

program options. The aggregators offer DR under the Capacity Bidding Program and the 

Aggregator Managed Portfolio Program. There is a special Base Interruptible Program offering 

through Aggregators, as well. For more information including a list of aggregators, see PG&E’s 

website: 

www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/demandresponse/largecommercialindustriala

ggregator/ 

Capacity Bidding Program (CBP) – With CBP you select your load reduction commitment on a 

month-by-month basis through your selected third party aggregator. This program is suitable for 

facilities with seasonally variable demand, such as food processors.  Performance requirements 

and incentives are determined by the aggregators. Some customers may be eligible to 

participate as their own DR aggregator to group their facilities. 

Table 4.5 on the following page, provides some factors that influence which DR participation 

program to consider: 

  

file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/L1HE/Desktop/New%20LIA/Training/www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/demandresponse/largecommercialindustrialaggregator/
file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/L1HE/Desktop/New%20LIA/Training/www.pge.com/mybusiness/energysavingsrebates/demandresponse/largecommercialindustrialaggregator/


 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 46 

Table 4.4: Factors to Consider for Demand Response Program Participation 

 

Customer situation: 

DR Participation Programs to Consider 

Demand 
Bidding 

Peak  
Day 

Pricing 

3rd Party 
Capacity 
Bidding 

Base 
Interruptible 

3rd Party 
Aggregator 
Managed 
Portfolio 

passes eligibility criteria 
× × × × × 

has building automation system 
× × × × × 

wants no manual DR (wants AutoDR) 
× × ×   

has SmartMeter 
  ×  × 

wants monthly capacity payments  
(vs. event by event payments)   × × × 

can commit kW reduction as stand-by 
 × × × × 

wants low risk 
×     

has low demand from 2-6 pm 
 ×    

has unpredictable hour-by-hour demand 
×  ×  × 

wants to limit (exposure to) number of 
events ×     

needs flexibility for different shed levels on 
each event ×     

has unpredictable month-by-month 
demand, or seasonal ×  ×  × 

can respond with load shed within minutes, 
year-round   × × × 

 

It is our understanding that San Miguel CSD does not currently participate in a DR program. 

Therefore, for the following recommended measures, we have estimated incentives based on 

the Peak Day Pricing (PDP) Program. 

On the day of the audit, DR was discuss with the District and questions were asked to see how 

they could participate in a DR Program. We identified portions of their wastewater treatment 

process where electric usage could be reduced, such as by reducing aeration or pumping. 

District personnel were adamant that interfering or interrupting the treatment process would 

negatively affect plant discharge (effluent) and would put them at risk of violating their operating 

permit. 

The DR measure shown on the following pages identifies a potential load reduction without the 

risk of violating the wastewater treatment plant’s operating permit. 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 47 

DRM-1: Turn Off Interior Lighting during a Demand Response Event 

Demand Reduction  Annual Savings  Costs and Payback 

Maximum 
(kW) 

Average 
(kW) 

Maximum 
Savings & 
Incentive 

Average 
Savings & 
Incentive 

Measure 
Cost 

Potential 
PG&E Tech 
Incentive 

Net 
Measure 

Cost 

Simple 
Payback 
(years) 

0.8 0.8 $3 $3  $0 $0 $0 Immediate 

Observations 

The District Office, New Firehouse, and WWTP maintenance garage have interior fluorescent 

lights that operate throughout the day. 

Recommendations 

We recommend manually turning off these lights during demand response events. 

Costs and Assumptions 

Savings for this measure were estimated based on PG&E’s Standard Fixture Wattage Table. 

Since there is no cost for this measure, it is not eligible for a PG&E technology incentive. 

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 48 

4.8 Distributed Generation Measures (DGM) 

Distributed Generation Measures (DGMs) involve installing equipment on-site that allows the 

facility to generate its own electricity. In some cases, waste heat from electricity generation may 

be used in the facility as well. 

DGM-1: Install Solar PV System to Offset WWTP Energy Use 

Annual Cost 
 Savings 

($/yr) 

Rough 
Installed Cost 

($) 

Rough 
Incentive 

($) 

Simple  
Payback 
(years) 

$51,957 $689,000 $0 13.3 

Observations 

San Miguel CSD is interested in installing a solar PV system 

at its wastewater treatment plant to offset a portion of the 

plant’s energy use. Based on PG&E’s 2014 billing data, the 

plant uses approximately 440,000 kWh/yr, with an average 

peak demand of 57 kW.  

Analysis 

We analyzed a ground-mount system for a portion of plant 

grounds not currently utilized for treatment processes. We 

sized the system to generate approximately 75% of the 

WWTP’s 2014 electricity usage, using National Renewable 

Energy Laboratory’s (NREL) PVWatts Calculator. The 

PVWatts Calculator estimates the energy production of grid-

connected photovoltaic systems. A potential system layout 

is shown in Figure 4.8 below. 

 
Figure 4.8: Proposed Solar PV System 

 

Solar PV Systems: 

Solar PV Systems use solar cells to 

generate DC electricity from sunlight. 

This DC power is converted by an 

inverter to AC power for use by 

existing electrical systems. 

A solar PV power system enables a 

facility to generate some of its daily 

electrical energy demand on its own 

roof. In a net metering installation, 

the facility remains connected to the 

electric utility grid at all times, so any 

power needed beyond what the solar 

system produces is drawn from the 

utility.  

Solar PV systems are most effective 

during peak afternoon periods, when 

electricity is most expensive.  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 49 

PVWatts Calculator assumptions include: standard modules, fixed (open rack), 14% system 

losses, 20° tilt, 180° azimuth, 1.1 DC to AC size ratio, and 96% inverter efficiency. 

The potential system is approximately 40 ft x 330 ft. PVWatts estimated a system size of 196.8 

kW, with an annual production of 330,817 kWh. 

The cost of installing solar PV systems has dropped significantly over recent years. In addition, 

many financing options are available, often including means to capture the value of tax credits 

through a third party. This is an excellent time to install solar PV, while the 30% federal 

investment tax credit, other tax benefits, and net energy metering remain in place.  

Costs and Assumptions 

We estimated the cost of the system and installation at $3.50/Watt based on previous projects.  

Cost savings were estimated based on the current average electricity rates plus 20%, to 

approximately account for the higher rates of solar PV production during high electricity rate 

periods. We did not account for escalation of electricity costs in the cost savings estimate.  

We did not estimate incentives for this measure because CSI incentives are no longer available 

for PG&E customers. In addition, if the CSD is exempt from federal taxes, it is not eligible for the 

federal tax credit incentive for solar systems.  

  



 

     Integrated Energy Audit – San Miguel CSD 50 

5 Appendix: Calculations and Supplemental Information 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Spreadsheet Table of Contents

Table of Contents.............................................. 1

EEM Table........................................................ 2 -- 3

LCM-1 Int LEDs................................................. 4

LCM-2 Ext LEDs............................................... 5

LCM-3 High Eff Motors...................................... 6

CIM-4 Aerators VFD.......................................... 7

CIM-5 Install Fine Bubble.................................. 8 -- 9

DRM Table........................................................ 10 -- 11

DRM-1 Lights off............................................... 12

DRM-2 Aerators off........................................... 13

LMM Table (optional)........................................ 14

LMM-1 - Well Water Pumping........................... 15

DGM Table (optional)........................................ 16

DGM-1 PV........................................................ 17



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

Energy Efficiency Measures (EEM)

SLO San Miguel

1331

 

Measure Description

Peak 

Savings 

(kW) **

Electricity 

(kWh/yr)

Natural 

Gas 

(Therms 

/yr)

Annual 

Cost 

Savings 

($/yr)

CO2 

Saved 

(Tons

 /yr)

Estimated

Installed

Cost ($)

Potential 

PG&E 

Incentive 

($)

Net 

Measure 

Cost ($)

Pay-

back 

Period 

(Yrs)

LCM-1
Replace Interior Halogen, Incandescent, and CFL 

Downlights with LEDs
0 120 0  $          20 0  $          44  $           -    $          44 2.2

LCM-2
Upgrade Exterior MH, CFL, and Halogen Fixtures 

with LEDs with Bi-Level Controls
0 8,600 0  $     1,300 2  $     7,500  $        830  $     6,670 5.1

LCM-3
Install High Efficiency Motors as Motors Need 

Replacement***
2 6,200 0  $        900 2  $     4,400  $           -    $     4,400 4.9

CIM-4
Retrofit Surface Aerators with VFDs and Use Existing 

DO Sensors to Automatically Modulate Aeration of 

Treatment Ponds

0 29,800 0  $     4,500 9  $   27,000  $     2,400  $   24,600 5.5

CIM-5 Install Higher Efficiency Aeration System*** 23 240,900 0  $   36,700 69  $ 128,000  $           -    $ 128,000 3.5

Energy Efficiency Measure Totals 25 255,820 0  $   38,920 74  $ 139,944  $        830  $ 139,114 3.6

* GHG = Green House Gas
**

*** This Measure's installed cost is a rough incremental cost. Please see the measure text for additional information.

Peak Savings: For energy efficiency, “peak kW savings” estimate should correspond to the estimated “average grid level impact between 2:00 p.m. and 5:00 p.m. 

during the three consecutive weekday periods containing the weekday temperature with the hottest temperature of the year” per Section 1.4.8 in the 2010 Statewide 

Customized Offering Procedures Manual for Business, http://aesc-inc.com/download/spc/2010spcdocs/UnifiedManual/Customized%201%200%20Policy.pdf.

Measure 

Number

Approximate Energy, Cost and GHG* Savings Estimated Costs, Incentives, and Payback



Assuming Electricity Cost 0.15$    /kWh (Average for recent 12 months, this account)

Assuming Gas Cost -$      /therm (Average for recent 12 months, this account)

0.575 /kWh PG&E Carbon Dioxide (CO2) Emissions Rates 

11.7 /therm

Assuming NPV Discount Rate 10% (Default 10%, adjustable)

2014 PG&E Incentives

CRI (NRR) Incentives Rate

Cost Cap 50%

Peak Electricity Demand 150$     per peak kW

Targeted Lighting 0.08$    per kWh Includes LED & Lighting EMS Systems

Basic Lighting 0.03$    per kWh

Targeted Non-Lighting 0.15$    per kWh

Basic Non-Lighting 0.08$    per kWh

Gas 1.00$    per therm

Retrocommissioning Incentives

Electricity 0.08$    per kWh

Gas 1.00$    per therm

Cost Cap (all RCx measures) 50%

Catalog Rebates (please list) $ Amt. Qty/each Code Applicable Measure #s Above

Install > 70-110 watt LED Fixture Reaplacing HID 60 4 LT013 LCM-2

Install > 110-150 watt LED Fixture Reaplacing HID 70 5 LT012 LCM-2

Assuming CO2 Reduction Equivalents, lbs CO2



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel 

LCM-1 Replace Interior Halogen, Incandescent, and CFL Downlights with LEDs

Base Case

Facility Location Fixture Type Fixture Code

Fixture 

Wattage 

(kW/Fixt.

Fixture 

Qty

Input Power 

(kW)

Annual Op. 

Hrs

Front office 18W CFL CFQ18/1 0.026 2 0.052 2,080

Hallway 18W CFL CFQ18/1 0.026 2 0.052 2,080

Total Input Power 0.1 kW

Annual Energy 216 kWh/yr

Proposed Case

Facility Location Fixture Type Fixture Code

Fixture 

Wattage 

(kW/Fixt.

Fixture 

Qty

Input Power 

(kW)

Annual Op. 

Hrs

Front office 11W LED N/A 0.011 2 0.022 2,080

Hallway 11W LED N/A 0.011 2 0.022 2,080

Total Input Power 0.04 kW

Annual Energy 92 kWh/yr

Savings Units Sources, Assumptions, Notes

Peak Demand Savings 0.1 kW

Annual Energy Savings 120 kWh

Total Cost Savings $20

Incentive $0

Project Cost Qty

4 $10 /lamp

Contingency 10% $4

D&E 0% $0

Cx 0% $0

Total Cost $44

Potential Incentive

Not eligible for incentives

11W LED Lamp Online Lighting Retailer

District 

Office

District 

Office

The District Office is illuminated by a combination of linear fluorescent lamps and CFL downlights. We recommend 
replacing the CFL downlights with more efficient LED fixtures.



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel 

LCM-2 Upgrade Exterior MH, CFL, and Halogen Fixtures with LEDs with Bi-Level Controls

Base Case

Facility Location Fixture Type Fixture Code

Fixture 

Wattage 

(kW/Fixt.

Fixture 

Qty

Input Power 

(kW)

Annual Op. 

Hrs

WWTP Pole lights 400W HPS HPS400/1 0.465 5 2.325 4,100

WWTP Garage exterior 250W MH MH150/1 0.190 1 0.190 4,100

Old Firehouse Front exterior 250W MH MH150/1 0.190 1 0.190 4,100

Well pump 4 Front Exterior 250W MH MH150/1 0.190 2 0.380 4,100

Total Input Power 3.1 kW

Annual Energy 12,649 kWh/yr

Proposed Case

Facility Location Fixture Type Occupancy

Fixture 

Wattage 

(kW/Fixt.

Fixture 

Qty

Input Power 

(kW)

Occ. Sensor 

Reduction 

Factor

Annual 

Operating 

Hours

WWTP Pole lights 150W LED N/A 0.150 5 0.750 N/A 4,100

WWTP Garage exterior 75W LED Occupied 0.075 1 0.075 N/A 2,255

WWTP Garage exterior 75W LED Unoccupied 0.045 1 0.045 45% 1,845

Old Firehouse Front exterior 75W LED Occupied 0.075 1 0.075 N/A 2,255

Old Firehouse Front exterior 75W LED Unoccupied 0.045 1 0.045 45% 1,845

Well pump 4 Front Exterior 75W LED Occupied 0.075 2 0.150 N/A 2,255

Well pump 4 Front Exterior 75W LED Unoccupied 0.045 2 0.090 45% 1,845

Total Input Power 1.2 kW

Annual Energy 4,084 kWh/yr

Savings Units Sources, Assumptions, Notes

Peak Demand Savings 0 kW

Annual Energy Savings 8,600 kWh

Total Cost Savings $1,300

Incentive $830

Project Cost Qty

4 $269 /fixture

150W LED 5 $444 /fixture

Installation - Pole-mounted fixtures 5 $262 /fixture 2015 RS Means Electrical Cost Data

Installation - Wall pack fixtures 4 $131 /fixture 2015 RS Means Electrical Cost Data

Photocells & Occ. Sensors 4 $65 /fixture Both senors typically integrated into one.

Contingency 10% $539

D&E 10% $539

Cx 20% $1,078

Total Cost $7,500

Online Lighting Retailer

No DEER Peak reduction because the 

lights operate only at night

Potential Incentive

75W LED Online Lighting Retailer

Eligible for DEEMED LED Exterior Area 

Lighting Rebate

The exteriors of the Old Firehouse, Well pump 4, and the WWTP are illuminated with high intensity discharge (HID) fixtures. 
We recommend replacing the existing HID fixtures with more efficient LED fixtures.



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel CSD

LCM-3 Install High Efficiency Motors as Motors Need Replacement

Notes

Location Motor Motor Input Power Operating Hours

(hp)  Efficiency (kW) (hr/yr)

Headworks 7.5 89.5% 4.69 2,640 220 hours per month, from pump operation logs

Aerator Pond #1 25 92.4% 15.14 8,760

Aerator Pond #2 25 92.4% 15.14 8,760

Aerator Pond #3 7.5 89.5% 4.69 4,380

Aerator Pond #4 7.5 89.5% 4.69 4,380

Well #3 40 93.0% 24.06 1,980 165 hours per month, from San Miguel CSD

Well #4 60 93.6% 35.87 1,788 166 hours per month, from San Miguel CSD

Well #5 40 93.0% 24.06 35 167 hours per month, from San Miguel CSD

Total Input Power 128.34 kW

Annual Energy 431,282 kWh

Units Notes

Location Nameplate Motor Input Power Operating Hours

(hp)  Efficiency (kW) (hr/yr)

Headworks 7.5 91.7% 4.58 2,640

Aerator pond 1 25 93.6% 14.94 8,760

Aerator pond 2 25 93.6% 14.94 8,760

Aerator pond 3 7.5 91.7% 4.58 4,380

Aerator pond 4 7.5 91.7% 4.58 4,380

Well pump 3 40 94.1% 23.78 1,980

Well pump 4 60 95.0% 35.34 1,788

Well pump 5 40 94.1% 23.78 35

Total Input Power 126.52 kW

Annual Energy 425,088 kWh

Savings

Peak Demand Savings 1.8 kW

Energy Savings 6,200 kWh/yr

Total Cost Savings $900 /yr

Units Notes

Incentive $0.00 Not eligible for PG&E incentives

Project Cost Qty Increm. Cost Notes

25 hp premium efficiency motor (TEFC) 2                $550 /motor

7.5 hp premium efficiency motor (TEFC) 4                $326 /motor

40 hp premium efficiency motor 2                $645 /motor

60 hp premium efficiency motor 1                $721 /motor

Contingency 0% $0

D&E 0% $0

Cx 0% $0

Total Cost $4,400

Base Case

Proposed Case

Potential Incentive

Estimates energy savings associated with replacing the existing standard efficiency motors listed below with premium efficiency motors as
the motors need replacement.



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel 

CIM-4

Units Notes

Aerator motor 7.5 hp Motor nameplate

Number of aerators 2 One per pond

Motor Load Factor 75%

DO when aerators run 4 mg/L Assumption based on permit level (1-4 mg/L).

Daily Operation 12 hours 8PM to 8AM, 7 days/week

Annual Operation 4,380 hours 365 days per year

Motor input power 8.4 kW

Total Energy Used 36,759 kWh

Units Notes

Proposed DO setpoint 2 mg/L

Proposed VFD speed 50% Reduce speed by half to reduce DO concentration by half

Motor Input Power 1.6 kW At 50% speed

Total Energy Used 6,936 kWh

Savings

Peak Demand Savings 0.0 kW

Energy Savings 29,800 kWh/yr

Total Cost Savings $4,500 /yr

Units Notes

Incentive $2,400 Basic Non-Lighting measures

Project Cost Qty Unit Price Unit Notes

2 DO sensors, 1 controller, 2 7.5-hp VFDs 1          $19,826 Contractor quote from Clear Blue

Contingency 10% $1,983

D&E 15% $2,974

Cx 10% $1,983

Total Cost $27,000

Current Operation

Proposed Operation

Potential Incentive

Retrofit Surface Aerators with VFDs and Use Existing DO Sensors to Automatically Modulate Aeration of Treatment Ponds

Estimates energy savings associated with installing VFDs  and reducing speed of aerator motors in ponds #3 and #4.

Note that the potential energy savings from this measure is mutually exclusive of the energy savings estimated for CIM-3, as the measures cannot be 
implemented simultaneously.



2000-06a BY: CW/BH QC: JRD

PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel 

CIM-5 Replace Existing Surface Aerators with Submerged Fine Pore Bubble Diffuser System

Units Notes

Average Influent Flow Rate 0.112 MG/day Data provided by San Miguel CSD

Annual Influent Flow 40.9 MG/yr

Average Influent BOD Concentration 285 mg/L Data provided by San Miguel CSD

Effluent Discharge BOD 10 mg/L Data provided by San Miguel CSD

Annual BOD5 Load 93,622 lb BOD5/yr

DO Setpoint 2.0 mg/L Using DO sensors and controller

O2 Required to Satisfy BOD Load 140,433 lb O2/yr Calculated based on influent volume

Aerator Operating Hours 8,760 hr/yr

Average Oxygen Transfer Rate 16.0 lb O2/hr

Number of Aerators in Ponds 1 & 2 2

Aerator Motor, Ponds 1 & 2 25 hp

Aerator Motor Efficiency 92.4%

Aerator Op. Hours, Ponds 1 & 2 8,760 hr/yr

Number of Aerators in Ponds 3 & 4 2

Aerator Motor, Ponds 3 & 4 7.5 hp

Aerator Motor Efficiency 89.5%

Aerator Op. Hours, Ponds 3 & 4 4,380 hr/yr

Total Input Power 30.3 kW Peak, does not include aerators in ponds #3 & 4

Annual Energy Usage 306,289 kWh/yr

Units Notes

DO Setpoint 2.0 mg/L

O2 Required to Satisfy BOD Load 140,433 lb O2 Calculated based on influent volume

Aerator Operating Hours 8,760 hr/yr

Average Oxygen Transfer Rate 16.0 lb O2/hr

Course Bubble Diffuser Oxygen Transfer Efficiency 7% Metcalf & Eddy, Wastewater Engineering

Average Oxygen Aeration Rate 229.0 lb O2/hr

Mass of O2 in Air 0.0176 lb O2/ft3 Calculated at 14.7 psia and 65F

Volume of Blower Air Needed for Aeration 217 cfm

Blower Discharge Pressure 7.5 psig Estimated

Blower Efficiency 70% Estimated

Blower Shaft Power 8.7 bhp Calculated

Blower Motor Efficiency 90% Estimated

Average Input Power 7.2 kW

Annual Energy Usage 62,992 kWh/yr Adjusted Baseline

Current Operation

Proposed Baseline Operation

This measure evaluates the potential energy savings from replacing the existing mechanical surface aerators with submerged fine 
pore bubble diffusion aeration. 

Baseline: It is not clear what the industry standard practice (ISP) for biological treatment would be for a wastewater treatment 
plant of San Miguel's size (0.20 MGD). Therefore, to be conservative we have selected course bubble diffused aeration as the ISP
for plant's expanding their treatment capacity.

Our analysis assumes that mixing is the limiting factor for aeration demand, not oxygen for biological degradation. The minimum 
aeration rate of 15 cfm/1000 ft3 is applied to the first pond under the assumption that this will be the location of most of the BOD 
reduction.

Note that the potential energy savings from this measure is mutually exclusive of the energy savings estimated for CIM-4, as the
measures cannot be implemented simultaneously.

SLO San Miguel LIA Analysis v12.xlsm / CIM-5 Install Fine Bubble

Copyright (c) 2015 by kW Engineering. All rights reserved. Page 8 of 64



2000-06a BY: CW/BH QC: JRD

Units Notes

DO Setpoint 2.0 mg/L

O2 Required to Satisfy BOD Load 140,433 lb O2/yr Calculated based on influent volume

Aerator Operating Hours 8,760 hr/yr

Average Oxygen Transfer Rate 16.0 lb O2/hr

Fine Bubble Diffuser Oxygen Transfer Efficiency 15% Metcalf & Eddy, Wastewater Engineering

Average Oxygen Aeration Rate 106.9 lb O2/hr

Mass of O2 in Air 0.0176 lb O2/ft3 Calculated at 14.7 psia and 65F

Blower Airflow Needed for Aeration 101 cfm Based oxygen aeration rate

Blower Airflow Needed for Mixing 225 cfm Based on recommended minimum airflow rate

Blower Discharge Pressure 7.5 psig Estimated

Blower Efficiency 70% Estimated

Blower Shaft Power 9.0 bhp Calculated

Blower Motor Efficiency 90% Estimated

Average Input Power 7.5 kW

Annual Energy Usage 65,339 kWh/yr

Savings

Peak Demand Savings 22.8 kW

Annual Energy Savings 240,900 kWh/yr

Total Cost Savings $36,700 /yr

Units Notes

Incentible Peak Demand Savings -0.3 kW

Incentible Annual Energy Savings -2,300 kWh/yr

Incentive $0 PG&E Basic Non-Lighting measure

Project Cost Qty Unit Price Unit Notes

10-hp variable speed blower 2          $20,000 One is back-up

Fine pore bubble diffusers 2          $20,000 per pond
Estimate includes diffusers, piping, control valves, 

and installation

Contingency 25% $20,000

D&E 25% $20,000

Cx 10% $8,000

Total Cost $128,000

Proposed Operation

Potential Incentive

SLO San Miguel LIA Analysis v12.xlsm / CIM-5 Install Fine Bubble

Copyright (c) 2015 by kW Engineering. All rights reserved. Page 9 of 64



LIA DR Template

PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

Demand Response Measures (DRM)

Enabling Technology Costs, Incentives Payback

Maximum 

(kW)

Average

(kW)

Maximum 

Potential DR 

Program 

Incentive 

($/yr)

 Average 

Potential DR 

Program 

Incentive 

($/yr) 

 Cost for 

Enabling 

Technology 

($) 

 MAXIMUM 

Potential 

PG&E 

Technology 

Incentive 

 Net Cost of 

Enabling 

Technology 

($) 

Simple 

Payback (yr)

DRM-1
Turn Off Interior Lighting during a Demand 

Response (DR) Event
0.8 0.8 $6 $6 $0 $0 $0 Immediate

Demand Response Measure Totals 0.8 0.8 $6 $6 $0 $0 $0 0.0

NOTE:  The estimated incentives, savings and costs in the table above are based on the Peak Day Pricing demand response program, and 

PG&E's Technology Incentive. See full details and assumptions in the appendix.

Measure 

Number 

(DRM-#)

Measure Description

Demand Reduction Approx. Annual Incentive



LIA DR Template

PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

Demand Response Measures (DRM)

Inputs for Incentives and Financials

  Incentives vary widely. These estimates assume the following:

2012 PG&E Incentives Rate

Demand Response Program: Update Program Data

Assumed Events Per Month 2                   events/month

Events Per Year 12 events/year

Event Duration 4 hours/event

Capacity Reservation (kW) 25 kW

Enablement Program: -Demand reductions are for current conditions, before efficiency measures.

Technology Incentive (T.I.) $125.00 per kW -Technology Incentive: manual initiation (not Auto-DR), capped by measure.

Technology Incentive Cost Cap 50%

Auto-DR Technology Incentive $250.00 per kW

Auto-DR Technology Incentive Cost Cap 100%

Rate Schedule Update Tariff Data

Average DR Event Electricity Cost 0.16233$      /kWh Weighted average based on DR Program event window

Net Present Value (NPV):

Assuming NPV Discount Rate 10% Default 10%, adjustable

Assuming DR Measure EUL 5 years Default 5 years  (EUL = Expected Useful Life)

E19S

1 - PDP - Peak Day Pricing

1 - Technology Incentive

Existing PDP Customer



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel

DRM-1 Turn Off Interior Lighting during a Demand Response (DR) Event

Existing Power Draw of Interior Lights

Facility Location Fixture Type Fixture Code

Fixture 

Wattage 

(kW/Fixt.

Fixture 

Qty

Input Power 

(kW)

Annual Op. 

Hrs

District Office Front office 18W CFL CFQ18/1 0.026 2 0.052 2,080

District Office Hallway 18W CFL CFQ18/1 0.026 2 0.052 2,080

District Office Front office 4-ft T8 Fluor. F42ILL (1) 0.059 4 0.236 2,080

New Firehouse Engine Bay 4-ft T8 Fluor. F42ILL (1) 0.059 4 0.236 8,760

WWTP Maintenance garage 4-ft T8 Fluor. F42ILL (1) 0.059 4 0.236 2,080

Total Demand Reduction 0.8 kW

Total Energy Savings 20 kWh Assuming 5 events of 5 hrs each (25 hrs)

Total Cost Savings $3

Incentive $0

Project Cost

Cost $0

Potential Incentive

Not eligible for incentives since no cost.

We recommend turning off interior lighting at the District Office, New Firehouse, and WWTP Maintenance garage 
during a DR event.



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel

DRM-2 Turn Off Pond Aerators during a DR Event

Existing Power Draw of Interior Lights Notes

Aeration Pond Motor HP Load Factor
Motor 

Input kW

Pond 1 25 83% 15.54 Load factor from EEM2 High Efficiency Aerators calc

Pond 2 25 83% 15.54 Load factor from EEM2 High Efficiency Aerators calc

Total Input Power 31.1 kW

Total Input Power 777 kWh Assuming 5 events of 5 hrs each (25 hrs)

Total Cost Savings $118

Incentive $0

Project Cost

Cost $0

Potential Incentive

Not eligible for incentives since no cost.

We recommend turning off the pond aerators at the WWTP during a DR event.



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

Load Management Measures (LMM)

SLO San Miguel

1331

Winter

Off Peak 

(kW)

Winter 

Part Peak 

(kW)

Summer 

Off Peak 

(kW)

Summer 

Part Peak 

(kW)

Summer 

Peak

(kW)

Electricity 

Demand 

Cost 

Savings

 Electricity 

Use Cost 

Savings 

($/yr) 

 Total 

Electricity 

Cost 

Savings 

($/yr) 

 Measure 

Cost ($) 

Simple 

Payback 

(yr)

Reduction 

During 

Max 

Demand?

LMM-1
Shift a Portion of the Well Water Pumping 

Out of the Summer Peak Period
0.0 0.0 19.8 0.0 -19.8 -$         537$        537$        42,000$    78.2 No

Load Management Measure 

Totals
0.0 0.0 19.8 0.0 -19.8 -$         537$        537$        42,000$    78.2

Rate Schedule A1 actually HA-1X

Winter Off Peak 0.14289$   /kWh Maximum Demand Charge, Summer -$          /kW

Winter Part Peak 0.16095$   /kWh Part Peak Demand Charge, Winter -$          /kW

Summer Off Peak 0.20395$   /kWh Maximum Demand Charge, Winter -$          /kW

Summer Part Peak 0.22915$   /kWh Part Peak Demand Charge, Summer -$          /kW

Summer Peak 0.23743$   /kWh Peak Demand Charge, Summer -$          /kW

Assuming NPV Discount Rate 10% (Default 10%, adjustable)

Assuming DR Measure EUL 5 years (Default 5 years)

Number of Summer Days 130 Monday-Friday, May 1 - Oct 31

Number of Winter Days 130 Monday-Friday, Nov 1 - Apr 30

Summer Off Peak Period 11 hours

Summer Park Peak Period 7 hours

Summer Peak Period 6 hours

Winter Off Peak Period 11 hours

Winter Part Peak Period Duration 13 hours

Measure 

Number
Measure Description

Average Load Shift by Period Annual Cost Savings Costs and Payback



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel 

LMM-1 Pump Well Water Prior to Summer Peak Period

Units Notes

Static Groundwater Level 145 ft
Estimated based on measurements of similar 

well sites

Well Discharge Pressure 67 psig Observed at Well #4

Total Pumping Head 300 ft

Pump Flow Rate 1.25 cfs Observed at Well #4

Pump Flow Rate 561 gpm

Average Pump Efficiency 78% Estimated from pump curve

Average Pumping Power 54.5 bhp calculated

Motor Efficiency 93.0% From nameplate of Well #3 pump motor

Main Tank Storage Capacity 650,000 gallons From San Miguel CSD

Minimum Storage for Fire Protection 75% Estimated of existing storage

Minimum Storage Capacity 487,500 gallons Required for fire protection

Potential Peak Period Water Usage Shift 451 gpm If full tank is pumped down to minimum

Average Water Usage Rate 254 gpm Based on billing data

Average Pumping Load Shift 19.8 kW During Peak Period

Units Notes

Average Pumping Load Shift 19.8 kW

Daily Peak Period Duration 6 hr/day

Weekdays per Month 20 day/mo

Summer Peak Rate $0.26 /kWh Rate HA-1X TOU

Summer Off-Peak Rate $0.22 /kWh Rate HA-1X TOU

Monthly Cost Savings $89 /mo

Summer Cost Savings $537 /yr

Project Cost Qty Unit Price Unit Notes

SCADA System 1 $30,000
Estimate for two RTUs at wells 3 & 4, level 

sensors at tanks, and control unit with display

Contingency 10% $3,000

D&E 20% $6,000

Cx 10% $3,000

Total Cost $42,000

Pumping Energy Use

Savings

We recommend shifting water pumping out of the peak period.



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

Distributed Generation Measures (DGM)

SLO San Miguel

1331

 

Measure Description

Peak 

Savings 

(kW) **

Electricity 

(kWh/yr)

Natural 

Gas 

(Therms 

/yr)

Annual 

Cost 

Savings 

($/yr)

CO2 

Saved 

(Tons

 /yr)

Estimated

Installed

Cost ($)

Potential 

PG&E 

Incentive 

($)

Net 

Measure 

Cost ($)

Pay-

back 

Period 

(Yrs)

DGM-1
Install Photovoltaic Solar System 

to Offset Energy Use
57 330,817 0 51,957$    95 689,000$       -$         689,000$   13.3

Distributed Generation 

Measure Totals
57.0 330,817  $   51,957 95  $      689,000  $          -    $   689,000 13.3

* GHG = Green House Gas

**

*** NPV = Net Present Value

Assuming Electricity Cost 0 /kWh (Average for recent 12 months, this account)

Assuming Gas Cost 0 /therm (Average for recent 12 months, this account)

0.575 /kWh PG&E Carbon Dioxide (CO2) Emissions Rates 

11.7 /therm

Assuming NPV Discount Rate 10% (Default 10%, adjustable)

Peak Savings: For energy efficiency, “peak kW savings” estimate should correspond to the estimated “average grid level impact between 2:00 p.m. and 5:00 

p.m. during the three consecutive weekday periods containing the weekday temperature with the hottest temperature of the year” per Section 1.4.8 in the 2010 

Statewide Customized Offering Procedures Manual for Business, http://aesc-

inc.com/download/spc/2010spcdocs/UnifiedManual/Customized%201%200%20Policy.pdf.

Net Present Value (NPV) indicates financial attractiveness of a project. It is the value today of a project's future savings 

minus its cost. Future cash flows are discounted by an assumed annual rate (entered below) to account for risk, the cost 

of money, and inflation.

Assuming CO2 Reduction 

Equivalents, lbs CO2

Measure 

Number

Approximate Energy, Cost and GHG* Savings Estimated Costs, Incentives, and Payback



PG&E Integrated Energy Audit

SLO San Miguel

DGM-1 Install Solar PV System to Offset WWTP Energy Use

Units Notes

PV DC System Size 0.0 kW

Estimated Electricity Generated by PV System 0 kWh

Annual Peak Demand at WWTP 57 kW PG&E 2014 billing data

Annual Energy Usage at WWTP 440,342 kWh/yr PG&E 2014 billing data

Annual Electricity Cost at WWTP $57,632 PG&E 2014 billing data

Average Electricity Rate at WWTP 0.13 $/kWh

Units Notes

PV DC System Size 196.8 kW Result from PVWatts Calculator

Estimated Electricity Generated by PV System 330,817 kWh/yr Result from PVWatts Calculator

Savings

Electric Energy Generated 330,817 kWh/yr

Total Cost Savings $51,957 /yr

Units Notes

Incentive -           

Project Cost Qty Unit Price Unit Notes

196,800 $3.50 /Watt Based on previous projects.

Contingency 0% $0

D&E 0% $0

Cx 0% $0

Total Cost $689,000

Current Operation

Proposed Operation

Potential Incentive

Average System Price

San Miguel CSD is interested in installing a solar PV system at its wastewater treatment plant to offset a portion of 
the plant's energy use. We sized a system using PVWatts Calculator to offset approximately 75% of the treatment 
plant's annual energy use. The calculation below details the system size and economics.



 

Page 1 of 2 
Item XII 21  

Board Meeting 4-28-2016 
 

 
San Miguel Community Services District 

Board of Directors  
 

Staff Report 
April 28, 2016                                                   AGENDA ITEM: XII 21 
 
SUBJECT:   Review and Discuss proposed interim I T service improvement agreement 
  and associated costs presentation  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Committee should review and discuss proposal for I T service improvement and associated costs 
presentation.  Committee should provide direction to General Manager and District Staff 
 
BACKGROUND:  
This is a request to hear a presentation and a proposal for I T service improvement and 
associated costs.  Over the past 18 months, there have been several issues that have surfaced 
related to I T services and to existing computer equipment. 
 
For many years now, I T services have been a function performed by Phil Brown, a member of 
volunteer fire fighter crew and local resident, for “keeping cost low” reasons.  In the past, many 
administrator assignments (for computer uses) were assumed by others, not the General Manager 
because there were many staffing changes.  Task was also delegated by former GM’s to other 
District staff.  It is unknown how long this arrangement has been in place but beginning in late 
2014, administrative functions for computer and financial functions have been re-assumed by 
General Manager office.  There are following issues that have arisen and need to be addressed: 
 

• Security—There are many financial transactions that flow into and from the District, 
which need security enhancements to protect identities and uses encryption technologies 
that are not currently a part of District computer operations. 
 
Additionally, the present third party video security services should be replaced.  The 
existing video services cannot assure the District of full recovery of videos after 14 days.   
At a minimum, the District needs to have a service that can provide backup files for 
storage, more than 14 days of video retrieval/recovery capability. 
 
Lastly, the computer servers need immediate and significant security system upgrades to 
maintain operational capacity and functions.   The location of all existing computer, 
including on the system rack setup, needs upgrading, and use of adequate, reliable 
temperature control and secured access features installed.  An immediate purchase of a 
new server firewall unit is absolutely necessary.  This current server is no longer being 



 

Page 2 of 2 
Item XII 21  

Board Meeting 4-28-2016 
 

supported by Dell and licenses expired in 2013.  There are some available budget funds 
to purchase a new server and can be handled administratively. 
 

• Equipment—The recent changes for email service and webpage hosting has revealed the 
severity of outdated programming and equipment, including the use of outdated software 
programs, e.g. Windows 7 has been replaced by Windows 10 but District may be better 
served by Cloud operating system in the future.  There are budget funds available now to 
deal with the Chief’s need for a new computer, but prior estimate to provide a 
comprehensive change/upgrade is approximately $4,000 for hardware and software.  No 
ongoing maintenance, staff training or servicing is included with this estimate. 
 

• An immediate mapping of the system is critically needed to identify what may be needed 
in future operating systems and equipment.  This mapping and assessment is equally 
important now because the imminent installation of the SCADA system must be 
smoothly integrated for District computer systems and not repeat any past computer 
application mistakes. 

 
Today’s presentation and request is to consider a proposal for a more vigorous, credential I T 
services that not only can address these identified needs listed above but include ongoing 
maintenance and servicing without hiring an in-house I T employee to perform this work and 
tasks. 
 
Such services, being heard and considered at this meeting, have the advantage of all work done 
on a long-term basis with a master plan for District computer applications and equipment.  
Additionally, a certified, licensed professional I T service consultant would be available 24/7 to 
address critical as well as routine computer service needs.  A service factor/feature that is not 
readily available now. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 There is no fiscal impact associated with this presentation but if deemed appropriate to 
secure services as presented in this Committee meeting, future budgeting will need to account for 
expenses associated with said services.   
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Committee review and discuss the proposed service presentation and 
associated costs.  As needed and appropriate, Committee make provide Staff with further 
direction.  
 
PREPARED BY:      
Darrell W. GentryDarrell W. GentryDarrell W. GentryDarrell W. Gentry    
General Manager 
 
 
 
 



 San Miguel Community Services District
 

April 28, 2016                                           
 
SUBJECT: Machado Wastewater Treatment Plant Loading Study/Evaluation
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Receive oral report, written report and presentation from District Engineer on the Wastewater 
Treatment Loading Study/Evaluation.  Provide 
District staff.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
On March 11, 2015, the District authorized the District Engineer to prepare a study of the 
District’s wastewater treatment plant.  The goal of this study was to evaluate and assess the 
existing wastewater treatment plant, verify the performance of the plan
parameters, assess wastewater organic strength, and project capacity of the plant in the future 
compared to original design criteria (in other words, is the treatment plant capable of treating the 
design rated capacity of 0.2 millio
 
The Equipment & Facilities Committee reviewed this Study at its February 10
Committee recommended that the Loading Study findings be reported to the Board and to 
conduct further discussions regarding priorities
 
The Board is also advised that there is a current on
both the San Miguel CSD and Heritage Ranch CSD wastewater treatment plants, with the Camp 
Roberts wastewater treatment plant.  The study
Camp Roberts in 2013, and is being financed through a grant that the County received through 
the United State Department of Defense Office of Economic Adjustment.  RMC was retained by 
the County to conduct this study.  A stakeholder meeting was held on March 9, 2016, 
attendees included various staff from San Miguel CSD, Heritage Ranch CSD, Camp Roberts, the 
County, and RMC.  RMC presented an overview of preliminary findings of this study, and 
stakeholders provided feedback and preliminary comments.  The main benefit for Camp Roberts 
would be to receive consistent wastewater flows to their WWTP that would allow better 
capability to sustain biological treatment levels.  Currently, wastewater flows from Camp 
Roberts fluctuate significantly and makes day to day operations of their biological treatment 
process somewhat challenging.  Major considerations will be the length of sewage transmission 
mains, lift stations and gravity sewers required to convey sewage to the
coupled with specific desires by Camp Roberts for San Miguel CSD and Heritage Ranch to 

San Miguel Community Services District
 Board of Directors 

 

     Staff Report 
 

                                                  AGENDA ITEM:   

Wastewater Treatment Plant Loading Study/Evaluation

RECOMMENDATION: 
Receive oral report, written report and presentation from District Engineer on the Wastewater 
Treatment Loading Study/Evaluation.  Provide any further direction to General Manager and 

On March 11, 2015, the District authorized the District Engineer to prepare a study of the 
District’s wastewater treatment plant.  The goal of this study was to evaluate and assess the 
existing wastewater treatment plant, verify the performance of the plant relative to design 
parameters, assess wastewater organic strength, and project capacity of the plant in the future 
compared to original design criteria (in other words, is the treatment plant capable of treating the 
design rated capacity of 0.2 million gallons per day, average dry weather flow).  

The Equipment & Facilities Committee reviewed this Study at its February 10
Committee recommended that the Loading Study findings be reported to the Board and to 

egarding priorities. 

The Board is also advised that there is a current on-going study to consider consolidation of the 
both the San Miguel CSD and Heritage Ranch CSD wastewater treatment plants, with the Camp 
Roberts wastewater treatment plant.  The study follows a Joint Land Use Study conducted by 
Camp Roberts in 2013, and is being financed through a grant that the County received through 
the United State Department of Defense Office of Economic Adjustment.  RMC was retained by 

study.  A stakeholder meeting was held on March 9, 2016, 
attendees included various staff from San Miguel CSD, Heritage Ranch CSD, Camp Roberts, the 
County, and RMC.  RMC presented an overview of preliminary findings of this study, and 

vided feedback and preliminary comments.  The main benefit for Camp Roberts 
would be to receive consistent wastewater flows to their WWTP that would allow better 
capability to sustain biological treatment levels.  Currently, wastewater flows from Camp 

rts fluctuate significantly and makes day to day operations of their biological treatment 
process somewhat challenging.  Major considerations will be the length of sewage transmission 
mains, lift stations and gravity sewers required to convey sewage to the Camp Roberts WWTP, 
coupled with specific desires by Camp Roberts for San Miguel CSD and Heritage Ranch to 

San Miguel Community Services District 

AGENDA ITEM:   XII. 22 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Loading Study/Evaluation 

Receive oral report, written report and presentation from District Engineer on the Wastewater 
ny further direction to General Manager and 

On March 11, 2015, the District authorized the District Engineer to prepare a study of the 
District’s wastewater treatment plant.  The goal of this study was to evaluate and assess the 

t relative to design 
parameters, assess wastewater organic strength, and project capacity of the plant in the future as 
compared to original design criteria (in other words, is the treatment plant capable of treating the 

n gallons per day, average dry weather flow).   

The Equipment & Facilities Committee reviewed this Study at its February 10, 2016 meeting.  
Committee recommended that the Loading Study findings be reported to the Board and to 

going study to consider consolidation of the 
both the San Miguel CSD and Heritage Ranch CSD wastewater treatment plants, with the Camp 

follows a Joint Land Use Study conducted by 
Camp Roberts in 2013, and is being financed through a grant that the County received through 
the United State Department of Defense Office of Economic Adjustment.  RMC was retained by 

study.  A stakeholder meeting was held on March 9, 2016, and 
attendees included various staff from San Miguel CSD, Heritage Ranch CSD, Camp Roberts, the 
County, and RMC.  RMC presented an overview of preliminary findings of this study, and 

vided feedback and preliminary comments.  The main benefit for Camp Roberts 
would be to receive consistent wastewater flows to their WWTP that would allow better 
capability to sustain biological treatment levels.  Currently, wastewater flows from Camp 

rts fluctuate significantly and makes day to day operations of their biological treatment 
process somewhat challenging.  Major considerations will be the length of sewage transmission 

Camp Roberts WWTP, 
coupled with specific desires by Camp Roberts for San Miguel CSD and Heritage Ranch to 



   

Page 2 of 3 
4-28-2016 Board Meeting 

"throttle back" wastewater flows during times of national emergency.  The draft Study is forth 
coming.   
 
FINDINGS: 
 
The initial part of this study required District staff to provide extended sampling at various 
locations of the treatment process, including raw sewage samples, intermediate samples 
following Pond 1, Pond 2, Pond 3 and Pond 4 (effluent discharge), for standard wastewater 
strength parameters known as Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) and total suspended solids 
(TSS).  Additional tests were conducted for total dissolved solids (TDS) and nitrogen compound 
series.  The monitoring/sampling period was extended to 6 months to ensure a sufficient sample 
population to obtain representative results.   
 
Incoming wastewater flows and waste strength were assessed and summarized.  This information 
was then used to calculate the biological treatment capability of the pond treatment system using 
conventional wastewater kinetic decay formulas.    
 
The wastewater treatment plant waste discharge requirements (WDRs), issued by the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board in 1999, were summarized as part of this study, and the plant was 
evaluated as to its capability of reliably meeting the prescribed WDRs.   
 
The study concluded that the existing WWTP is operating as expected and designed, for a 0.2 
mgd rated capacity plant.  Waste strength was confirmed and determined to be typical of normal 
domestic wastewater.  This is important to note, for many Central Coast WWTPs, organic waste 
strength has had a tendency to increase as water conservation efforts improve as part of 
drought/water conservation measures.  The District’s wastewater strength is very typical of 
domestic wastewater treatment plants.   
 
The evaluation concluded that: 

• The WWTP is operating as expected and designed. 
 

• Pond 1 aerator will need to be monitored for adequacy as the plant flows approach design 
capacity, and may need to be upgraded to a high-energy efficiency 25 HP aerator motor 
to maintain dissolved oxygen levels in Pond 1.  This change in this aerator motor is also a 
high recommendation of the completed energy audit completed by County Energy Watch 
earlier this year.  The plant, however, is capable of treating 0.2 mgd wastewater at the 
current organic waste strength seen at the WWTP. 
 

• The plant flows are approaching the 75% mark, which triggers the need for the District to 
begin planning for future plant expansion. 
   

• The effluent and groundwater monitoring program does show water quality impacts 
directly resulting from effluent disposal operations.  However, these results are indicative 



   

Page 3 of 3 
4-28-2016 Board Meeting 

of immediate downstream impacts to GW quality, and may not be representative of 
significant water quality impacts to water supplies downstream of San Miguel. 
 
The District should continue to following the monitoring and reporting program, and 
should consider the addition of a deeper down-gradient monitoring well to allow 
continued monitoring of down-gradient conditions.   
 

Fiscal Impact: 
The cost of this study was $8,000 for the study preparation (Wallace Group Contract), plus an 
addition $5,000 budgeted for direct laboratory costs to the District.  At this time, no further fiscal 
impacts are identified in the near-term.  All costs are paid. 
 
However, in the coming months, the District should begin planning for the expansion of the 
WWTP to beyond 0.2 mgd capacity, and budget for a new, high energy-efficient 30 HP aerator 
motor be installed on Pond 1 (estimated at $15,000 to $20,000).   A range of costs for land 
acquisition, preliminary planning, engineering design and environmental documentation for the 
future plant expansion have not been estimated at this time. 
 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board receive and file this Report.  Fiscal planning process should 
begin with the FY 2016/2017 and FY 2017-18 budgetary process so planning for the expansion 
of the WWTP can be initiated in orderly and planned stages.  Such activities that will need to be 
initiated include: 

• Identify grant and loan funding alternatives to finance new plant expansion. 
• Consider purchase of the parcel immediately north of the existing WWTP property for 

future expansion (note, this was not a specific recommendation in this WWTP study, but 
is an item to be considered as part of the overall plant expansion planning). The estimated 
cost of this 17.67 acre parcel of land is approximately $275,000.   
 

• Budget for FY 2016/2017 funds for beginning the preliminary design process to identify 
rough order of magnitude of the Project expansion, and provide recommendations for 
plant improvements for plant expansion. 

 
 

PREPARED BY:     APPROVED BY:   
      
                   
Steve Tanaka,      Darrell Gentry, 
District Engineer     General Manager 
 
Attachment: 
Exhibit “A” – Copy of Wastewater Treatment Plant Loading Study by Wallace Group 



 1 4/18/2016 

EVALUATION OF WASTEWATER TREAMENT FACILITY 
SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 
Background 
 
The San Miguel CSD owns and operates an existing wastewater treatment facility, located on 
the north end of the District’s service area.  The plant underwent a significant upgrade in the late 
1990s, bringing its current and permitted capacity at 200,000 gpd (0.2 mgd).  The District 
current treats an average of approximately 140,000 gpd.  
 
Current Wastewater Flows 
 
The District recently replaced the influent flow meter in June 2015.  Prior daily flow records were 
considered inaccurate for the purposes of this study, thus July 2015 through December 2015 
flow values were used (see Figure 1).  Based on this six month period, maximum month 
average daily flow to the San Miguel CSD WWTP is approximately 140,000 gpd, or at 70% of 
total permitted capacity (on a flow basis).  A summary of flows for Year 2015 is included as 
Figure 2, which shows a sharp increase in wastewater from between June and July 2015 (due 
to meter replacement).  
 
The daily flow data was not uniform day to day, so it was difficult to ascertain and evaluate 
maximum daily flow trends.  Given that the San Miguel area should not experience large peaks 
from tourism or other factors, it is expected that the daily flows are relatively consistent day to 
day. It is recommended that the District endeavor to correct the daily flow readings so that they 
are representative of daily flows, and to allow a better assessment of maximum day flows to the 
plant. In addition, this information is reported to the Regional Board and should as accurate as 
possible.  It is noted that District staff indicated a substantial inflow/infiltration (I/I) component in 
response to rainfall.  This should be closely monitored during this El Nino rain year, and further 
I/I studies should be conducted to define the extent and sources of I/I in the sewer collection 
system.   
 
As indicated earlier, the maximum month average daily flow was determined to be 
approximately 140,000 gpd.  Maximum daily flow was not able to be determined based on 
provided flow data, due to the large discrepancies in flow reporting.  Based on Metcalf & Eddy, 
and for a town of this size, the maximum day is likely less than 1.5 times the average daily flow, 
and is likely very close to the average daily flow during the maximum month (or ~1.1 times the 
average annual flow).  Based on an estimate average daily flow of 131,000 gpd, the current 
maximum daily flow is estimated to be 145,000 gpd.  For the permitted flow at 200,000 gpd, the 
maximum day is estimated to be 220,000 gpd (153 gpm). The instantaneous peak hour can be 
derived from typical diurnal curves that express flow fluctuations throughout the day, and would 
on the order of 1.5 times the average daily flow.  At maximum day flow of 220,000 gpd (153 
gpm), the peak hour flow is estimated to be 330,000 gpd (230 gpm).   
 
Current Service Conditions 
 
The District has a total of 653 sewer service connections as of the date of this study.  These 
connections are broken down as follows: 

• SFR/MFR, 625 
• Commercial, 1 
• Industrial/Business, 20 



 2 4/18/2016 

• Public, 7 
• Total, 653 

 
In the main zone, there are currently six septic tanks, and at San Lawrence Terrace (SLT), a 
total of 65 septic tanks.  At this time, it is not expected that the SLT septic tanks will be served in 
the future by public wastewater facilities; however, there are provisions to accommodate a 
sewer in the River Road bridge crossing the Nacimiento River, should the need arise in the 
future.  As for the six septic tanks in the main zone, it is possible that these will be served by the 
wastewater plant in the future; however, this number is small and will have little consequence to 
the outcome of this study.    
 
The current population served by the District is estimated at 2,336.  Based on the total number 
of dwelling units, the household density is estimated at 3.3 per household.  This may be slightly 
high, but expected given the demographics of the area.  Using a ratio of SFR/MFR connections 
to the total (including septic tanks), the population served by the wastewater treatment plant 
would be (625/696 x 2,336) 2,098 persons.   
 
Based on monthly maximum average wastewater flows to the plant of 140,000 gpd, and 
population of 2,098 persons, the wastewater flow is calculated to be 67 gallons per capita per 
day (gpcd).  This is within the expected range, and considered a reasonable estimate of 
wastewater flow per capita.   
 
Summary of Existing Waste Discharge Requirements 
 
The District’s facilities are regulated by Region 3 (Central Coast Region) Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (Regional Board) Order No. 99-046.  At the time the WDRs were issued, they 
were issued to the San Miguel Sanitary District, which was dissolved in the early 2000s, and 
subsequently the District resumed all wastewater responsibilities in the San Miguel CSD service 
area.  The existing facility was upgraded during this time frame, to include the full expansion 
described in Finding No. 5 of the WDRs, that is to construct the second of two 940,000 gallon 
aerated lagoons.  The permitted treatment capacity is 200,000 gpd (0.2 mgd) on a maximum 
month basis.  As these WDRs are approximately 15 years old, it is anticipated that the Regional 
Board will update the WDRs at some point in the near future.   
 

• Requirements of the WDRs are summarized as follows: 
 

• Permitted treatment capacity, mgd  0.2 (max. month) 
 

• Effluent limitations:  Avg. last 6 samples  Maximum 
  TDS, mg/L   825   900 
  Chloride, mg/L   180   200 
  Sulfate, mg/L   175   200 
  Sodium, mg/L   150   170 
 

• The treatment ponds must maintain a minimum 2.0 feet freeboard at all times, and must 
maintain dissolved oxygen of 1.0 mg/L minimum at all times. 

 
• Effluent pH shall range between 6.5 and 8.4 at all times. 

 



 3 4/18/2016 

• Discharge shall not cause nitrate concentrations in downgradient GW to exceed 5 mg/L 
(as N) 

 
• Discharge shall not cause “significant” increase in TDS. 

 
Under these current WDRs, the District is not required to sample influent or effluent organic 
waste strength parameters (total suspended solids (TSS), biochemical oxygen demand (BOD5)). 
However, the District must submit quarterly monitoring reports, and also must submit an annual 
report summarizing the past year’s effluent and disposal area monitoring.   
 
Wastewater Design Criteria 
 
The wastewater treatment plant is summarized as follows: 
 
Headworks.  At this time, there is not a headworks associated with this plant, only influent 
pumping/metering of wastewater.   Raw wastewater is pumped from the influent wetwell to the 
first aerated treatment pond.    
 
Aerated Treatment Ponds, Stage 1.  There are two 0.94 MG aerated aerobic ponds, equipped 
with 25 and 20 horsepower ponds, respectively.  These are completely mixed aerated lagoons.  
Thus, the floating aerators keep all solids in suspension while maintaining dissolved oxygen 
levels.  Solids do not appreciably deposit in Ponds 1 and 2, but instead settle out predominantly 
in Pond 3. Floatable plastics and debris must be raked out of these ponds by hand.   
 
Aerated Treatment Ponds, Stage 2.  There is a single 0.87 MG Stage 2 Pond, with a 7.5 HP 
aerator.  This pond and floating aerator maintains dissolved oxygen levels in the pond, while 
allowing solids to settle to the bottom of the pond.  Solids settle to the bottom of the pond, and 
organic matter in the sludge slowly decomposes anaerobically.  This pond is generally referred 
to as a facultative pond, with an upper aerobic zone and lower anaerobic zone.   
 
Aerated Treatment Ponds, Stage 3.  There is a single 0.87 MG pond equipped with a 7.5 HP 
aerator.  This is the final (fourth) pond that also maintains dissolved oxygen levels in the upper 
zone.  Very little sludge settles in this pond, and this pond would be considered a final polishing 
pond prior to discharge to the percolation ponds/beds.   
 
Percolation Ponds.  There are three percolation ponds totaling 1.7 acres in area.  The two 
northernmost ponds were re-conditioned in 2008.  At that time, both ponds had silted up 
considerably, and were not effectively percolating effluent.  Both ponds were dried out and 
ripped, and the upper several feet of material was removed, and replaced with clean sand.  In 
addition, the percolation ponds were deep-ripped in several locations to allow better connectivity 
to the underlying more permeable soils.  The third and southernmost pond was not re-worked at 
that time, but continues to serve as a percolation pond.   
 
Design criteria for the existing wastewater treatment facilities are summarized in Table 1. 
 
     Table1.  Summary of Design Criteria, San Miguel CSD WWTP 
 
Parameter, units Value 
FLOWS 
Average Daily Flow (ADF) mgd 0.2 



 4 4/18/2016 

Parameter, units Value 
Maximum Daily Flow (MDF), mgd 0.20A 
Peak Hourly Flow (PHF), mgd 0.80 
WASTE STRENGTH AND LOADING 
Influent BOD5, mg/L (design) [lbs/day] 300 [500] 
Influent TSS, mg/L (design) [lbs/day] 250 [417] 
INFLUENT LIFT STATION 
Pump Type Submersible 
No. of Pumps 2 
Pump Horsepower (HP), each 7.5 
Capacity, Each Pump, gpm 300 
Total Dynamic Head, TDH, feet 17 
TREATMENT PONDS 
Stage 1 (2 ponds): 
     Surface Area, Acres, each 
     Depth, Feet, each 
     Volume, Million Gallons, each 
     Hydraulic Retention Time, Days, each 
     Aerator Horsepower, HP  

 
0.44 
12 

0.94 
4.7 

25, 20 
Stage 2: 
     Surface Area, Acres 
     Depth, Feet 
     Volume, Million Gallons 
     Hydraulic Retention Time, Days 
     Aerator Horsepower, HP 

 
0.41 
10 

0.87 
4.4 
7.5 

Stage 3: 
     Surface Area, Acres 
     Depth, Feet 
     Volume, Million Gallons 
     Hydraulic Retention Time, Days 
     Aerator Horsepower, HP 

 
0.41 
10 

0.87 
4.4 
7.5 

EFFLUENT PERCOLATION/DISPOSAL 
Pond 1: 
     Surface Area, SF (acres) 

26,500 (0.61) 

Pond 2: 
     Surface Area, SF (acres) 

24,200 (0.56) 

Pond 3: 
     Surface Area, SF (acres) 

23,200 (0.53) 

aIt is noted that the design hydraulic maximum design flow rate criteria could not be found. 

A wastewater process schematic is presented as Figure 3. An aerial google earth image of the plant is 
included as Figure 4.   

  



 5 4/18/2016 

 

 

 

  



 6 4/18/2016 

 
Sampling Program 
 
As part of this WWTP evaluation, Wallace Group requested the District to implement a sampling 
program, to provide analytical results to better assess the plant’s performance.   The sampling 
program predominantly focused or traditional waste strength parameters (BOD5, TSS) and 
nitrogen compounds.  The District’s sampling period extended from April 2015 through 
September 2015.  All influent samples were 24-hour composite samples, and effluent and 
intermediate pond samples were all grab samples.   
 
Influent sampling is summarized in Table 2, based on a total of 15 influent composite samples 
analyzed. Based a review of the influent waste strength, the wastewater is considered typical of 
ordinary wastewater strength, and is actually on the weaker side of what is typically seen in this 
region, particularly given the degree of water conservation efforts that tend to concentrate 
wastewater strength.   
 
As summarized in the design criteria Table 1, the plant had a design organic loading of 300 
mg/L BOD5.  Based on the permitted flow of 0.2 mgd, this calculates to a daily allowable loading 
of 500 pounds of BOD5 per day.  The sampling results indicate a weaker strength wastewater 
than designed for, which from the standpoint of actual plant organic loading, the plant is 
receiving less organic waste strength. This indicates the following: 

• At 140,000 gpd, at a design organic loading of 300 mg/L BOD5, the plant would be 
receiving 350 lb/day BOD5, or 70% capacity expressed as a percentage of design 
loading capacity. 

• At 140,000 gpd, at an actual organic loading of 238 mg/L BOD5, the plant would be 
receiving 238 lb/day BOD5, or 56% capacity expressed as a percentage of design 
loading capacity. 

• Regardless of the above, the plant is limited to a treatment/discharge capacity of 
200,000 gpd (irrespective of actual plant organic loading).   

The above is important to note as this study evaluates the current status of the plant.  To be 
conservative, it is recommended to forecast future waste strength at the design strength of 300 
mg/L, even though current sampling suggests a weaker raw sewage.  However, current plant 
performance will be assessed based on actual sampling results.   
 
WWTP Performance Evaluation 

The WWTP performance evaluation is based on the following clarifications: 

• The actual influent BOD5 strength was used to evaluate the performance of the overall 
WWTP and the effectiveness of each wastewater pond.   

• Sampling indicates a slightly lower organic waste strength than the design strength of 
300 mg/L; the actual data was used to evaluate the plant performance during the 
sampling period. 

It is noted that the existing waste discharge requirements do not have an effluent limitation for 
BOD5 and TSS.  However, the federal standard for secondary treatment standards is for a 30-
day average BOD5 effluent concentration of 30 mg/L.  A summary of plant sampling, organic 
loading (expressed as BOD5) and percent BOD5 removal, are included in Table 3. 



 7 4/18/2016 

Overall, the current plant BOD5 removal is 94.3%, and effluent BOD5 is average 17 mg/L.  This 
is considered very good performance for the plant, particularly given the type of pond system.  
Sometimes, plant algae can elevate effluent BOD5 and TSS readings.  It is noted that during this 
sampling interval, effluent TSS to the percolation ponds averaged 24 mg/L, also considered to 
be a very good level of treatment.   

 

 

 

Biological processes such as activated sludge and aerated lagoon processes can be assessed 
based on the metabolic biological removal constant, known as “k”.  This value typically ranges 
from 0.2 to 1.0 for complete mix aerated lagoon systems.  The following Metcalf & Eddy 
equation for biological decay for complete mix aerated lagoons 1 and 2, was referenced: 

Based on viewing Ponds 1 and 2 together as a single pond, and using the effluent quality from 
Pond 3 (Pond 3 acts like a secondary clarifier to the complete mix aerated lagoon process), and 
solving for k: 

 

For Ponds 3 and 4, actual percent removal was calculated based on sampling data.  It should 
be noted that Pond 3 had a much lower removal rate (22%) as compared to Pond 4 (68%), due 
to the sludge blanket stored in Pond 3.  Using the k value calculated for Ponds 1 and 2, plant 
design flow of 0.20 mgd (maximum month flow), an influent BOD5 value of 300 mg/L, and 
estimated removal efficiencies in Ponds 3 and 4, the projected plant effluent quality (BOD5) was 
calculated as follows: 

Based on this calculation, it is projected that at a design organic loading of 300 mg/L BOD5, and 
at the permitted maximum month average daily flow of 0.2 mgd, the effluent quality is projected 
to marginally meet a secondary treatment standard of 30 mg/L (however keep in mind that this 
is not a stipulated requirement in the current permit).  The BOD removal efficiencies were based 
on typical ranges expected for facultative lagoons.   Again, it is noted that the current permit 
does not stipulate an effluent limitation.   

Based on other pond systems in this region, if waste discharge requirements were updated and 
such effluent limitations were imposed, this WWTP would likely see effluent limitations of 
“60/60”, that is, effluent limitation of 60 mg/L BOD5, and 60 mg/L TSS.  This plant would still 
likely meet these requirements.  

Oxygen Requirements.  The theoretical oxygen requirement for BOD5 removal is 1.5 pounds 
O2/pound BOD5 removed.  The oxygen transfer rate for floating aerators is 1.4 lbs O2/day/HP-hr. 
The oxygen requirements may be critical to Ponds 1 and 2 as flows approach the design 
capacity of 0.2 mgd, thus such oxygen loading is checked as follows: 

 



 8 4/18/2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Based on this review, the aerator for Pond 1 should transfer theoretically 250 pounds/day of 
oxygen, as compared to an ultimate loading of approximately 200 pounds per day.  Factors that 
can affect this include biological treatment efficiencies, changing organic loading/strength, and 
inefficiencies in oxygen transfer as aerator ages.  The District should monitor this closely, and 
should the Pond 1 aerator appear to not maintain oxygen levels at higher flow/loading rates, 
consider upgrading to a 30 HP aerator.  This should especially be considered if/when the useful 
life of the Pond 1 aerator is realized.  Also, according to District staff, the existing 25 HP aerator 
and Pond 1 are already experiencing some difficulties with maintaining dissolved oxygen levels 
above 1.0 mg/L, and the aerator must run almost continuously.   

Pond 3 should be monitored, and the sludge blanket in Pond 3 should be removed routinely, 
thus not allow a large buildup of sludge.  The build-up of sludge blanket in this pond can 
significantly impact BOD5 removal efficiency in the pond.  

Hydraulic Considerations.  The San Miguel CSD WWTP process performance is based 
on organic loading and hydraulic retention time overall in the four ponds.  A single large flow 
event is not likely to have major impacts to the treatment plant; however, the influent wetwell 
must be capable of handling all influent flows.   The peak hour flow at design capacity, was 
estimated at 230 mg/L.  When compared to a single pump capacity of 300 gpm, the plant should 
be able to handle peak hydraulic loading.  Additional I/I study should be conducted, however, to 
verify that I/I flows do not make influent plant flows exceed the capacity of a single pump, or 300 
gpm (0.43 mgd).   

 Effluent Disposal.  Effluent requirements stipulate that nitrates shall not increase by 
more than 5 mg/L (as Nitrate-Nitrogen) in the downgradient well, and that TDS levels shall not 



 9 4/18/2016 

be significantly increased. In 2015, the downgradient well was dry all year round, and thus no 
sampling was able to be performed on downgradient water quality.  The 2012 through first 
quarter 2013 GW monitoring results are summarized in Figures 5 through 9.  Based on these 
results, the effluent disposal operations do have an impact on local GW quality.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 10 4/18/2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 11 4/18/2016 

For 2014 and 2015, the downgradient well was dry and thus not able to be sampled.  However, 
in review of the 2012 and 2013 monitoring data, the TDS quality in the effluent and GW are 
directly related to the potable water quality, and effluent TDS quality appears to be in direct 
correlation with the downstream GW quality. However, the effluent TDS concentrations are 
stable and not increasing over time.  Nitrate-Nitrogen concentrations are not in direct relation to 
potable water quality, but are a function of the nitrogen cycle as nitrogen compounds go through 
the treatment process.  With limited data, it is difficult to draw a clear conclusion; however, it is 
evident that there is a direct correlation between effluent nitrate-N quality and downgradient well 
quality.  The April 2012 effluent nitrate-N reading may be an anomaly.   

 

 

 

Effluent Percolation Ponds 

The effluent percolation pond capacity is difficult to ascertain, due to changing conditions over 
time, and variability in percolation rates between the three percolation ponds.   It is 
recommended that the District monitor the performance of the ponds as is currently done on a 
daily basis, and assess the ponds more formally on an annual basis.  This annual review should 
assess and review logs of quantities of effluent discharged to the ponds, length of time required 
to remove standing water in between applications, and overall general performance of the 
ponds.  In 2007, the two northernmost ponds were scarified, reconditioned, and new material 
placed in the bottom of the ponds, to enhance performance.  This was necessitated due to poor 
percolation performance, resulting from the build-up of fine matter in the soils over time.  Since 
this work was performed in 2007, the percolation ponds have performed well, and little standing 
water is maintained in the percolation ponds.   

Solids Handling 

Currently, there is a single un-lined earthen bermed area that can receive sewage 
sludge/biosolids for drying.  The District must manually pump solids (mostly from Pond 3) to this 
drying area, manually dry the solids, and contract with a service to haul and dispose of sludge.  
It is envisioned that in the future, the Regional Board will require lined drying beds; however, at 
this time, with the Regional Board not requiring lined drying beds, the District can continue 
current day operations.  Unless a major change is made to the current process (aeration 
ponds), the existing drying operation is suitable for the foreseeable future.  Should the District 
desire to make significant changes to this operation, it would likely require filing of a Report of 
Waste Discharge, which could then spark additional regulatory changes from the Regional 
Board sooner rather than later.   

 

Conclusions 



 12 4/18/2016 

The existing WWTP is performing well, achieving an overall organic constituent removal of 94%.  
Based on the current plant performance, and projecting out to design flow capacity of 200,000 
gpd, the plant is expected to achieve good levels of treatment, and continue to meet equivalent 
secondary treatment standards at the design flow capacity.   

Based on the current flow of 130,000 to 140,000 gpd, the District should begin to initiate future 
planning for plant expansion.  The Regional Board typically requires Dischargers to begin this 
planning process when the plant reaches 75% of capacity (150,000 gpd).   

The Pond 1 aerator (and pond oxygen levels) should be carefully monitored as flows increase, 
to determine if an upsized aerator (to 30 HP) is warranted to feed sufficient oxygen to Pond 1.  
This should be especially considered if/when the aerator us up for replacement.  Maintaining 
sludge to minimum levels in Pond 3 will allow for optimum BOD removal in this Pond, and will 
enhance the overall effluent quality discharged to the percolation ponds.   

The effluent and groundwater monitoring program does show water quality impacts directly 
resulting from effluent disposal operations.  However, these results are indicate of immediate 
downstream impacts to GW quality, and may not be representative of significant water quality 
impacts to water supplies downstream of San Miguel.  The District should continue to following 
the monitoring and reporting program, and should consider the addition of a deeper 
downgradient monitoring well to allow continued monitoring of downgradient conditions.   

SGT: 



Wastewater Treatment Plant Loading 
Study/Evaluation 

 
April 28, 2106 



 Characterize Incoming Organic Waste Strength 
 Evaluate Plant Flows and Capacity Status 
 Evaluate WWTP Performance: 

 Per Design Rated Capacity of 0.2 mgd 
 Compliance with WDRs 

 
 



Pond 2 

Pond 1 

Sludge 
Drying Area 

Percolation 
Ponds/Beds (3) Pond 3 

Pond 4 

Salinas 
River 

WWTP Overview 



 Permitted treatment capacity, mgd , 0.2 (max. month) 
  Effluent limitations:                 Avg. last 6 samples        Maximum 
  TDS, mg/L   825  900 
  Chloride, mg/L   180  200 
  Sulfate, mg/L   175  200 
  Sodium, mg/L   150  170 
 Minimum 2.0 feet Freeboard at all times 
 Maintain minimum dissolved oxygen of 1.0 mg/L at all times. 
  Effluent pH shall range between 6.5 and 8.4 at all times. 
  Discharge shall not cause nitrate concentrations in downgradient GW to 

exceed 5 mg/L (as N) 
  Discharge shall not cause “significant” increase in TDS 



 2,098 Residents 
 653 Sewer Connections 

 625 SFR/MFR 
 1 Commercial 
 20 Industrial/Business 
 7 Public 

 Per Capital Wastewater Flow, 67 gal/day 



 -

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

 100,000

 120,000

 140,000

 160,000

Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15

Average Daily Flow, gpd (Year 2015) 

Average Daily Flow, gpd

Flow Meter 
Replacement 



 



Parameter, Units Value 

Daily Flow, Maximum, mgd 0.2 

Influent BOD, mg/L (lb/day) 300 (500) 

Pond 1 and 2 Aerators, HP 25, 20 

Pond 3 and 4 Aerators, HP 7.5 each 

Total Pond Volume, MG 3.62 

Total Pond Hydraulic Retention Time, 
Days 

18 

Effluent Percolation Ponds, Total Area, 
acres 

1.7 



Parameter Average Max Min 

BOD5, mg/L 238 359 157 

TSS, mg/L 100 220 52 

Summary of Influent Wastewater 
Sampling 



 At 200,000 gpd and 300 mg/L BOD: 
 Plant design loading=500 lbs/day BOD 

 At 140,000 gpd: 
 300 mg/L BOD=350 lbs/day BOD (70% design 

capacity) 
 238 mg/L BOD=278 lbs/day BOD (56% design 

capacity) 



 Biokinetic Decay Equation 
 Calculations and Sampling Indicate Treatment 

Performance as Expected and Designed 
 At 0.2 mgd flow, Plant Expected to Achieve 

Equivalent Secondary Treatment Standards (30 
mg/L BOD) 

 As Plant Nears 0.2 mgd, Pond 1 Aerator May 
Require Upgrade to 30 HP 



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13

GW Monitoring - Nitrate Nitrogen 

Upgradient Well, Nitrate-N, mg/L

Downgradient Well, Nitrate-N, mg/L



0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13

GW Monitoring - TDS 

Upgradient Well, TDS, mg/L

Downgradient Well, TDS, mg/L



 GW Monitoring – consider adding deeper 
downgradient well for more representative 
sampling (will require consultation with 
RWQCB staff) 

 Effluent Percolation Ponds Adequate for 0.2 
mgd; will require Expansion above design flow 

 Sludge Handling – may require lined drying 
beds in future 
 



 Waste Strength Characterized as Typical Domestic 
Sewage 

 Existing WWTP Performing as Expected and 
Designed 

 Flows at “Trigger Point” to Begin Future 
Expansion Planning Process 

 Minor Upgrade to Pond Aerator May Be Required 
in Near-Term 

 GW Monitoring Program Shows Water Quality 
Impacts – Additional Study and Monitoring May 
Be Required 



 

Page 1 of 2 
Item XII 23 

 Board of Directors April 28 2016 
 

 
San Miguel Community Services District 

Board of Directors   
 

Staff Report 
April 28, 2016                                                   AGENDA ITEM: XII 23 
 
SUBJECT:   Review and Discuss a District General Counsel Analysis of Interest Owed 

related to an inter-fund loan repayment  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Board should review and discuss the report and analysis by General Counsel regarding interest 
owed that is related to an inter-fund loan repayment by Fund 40 Wastewater to other fund 
accounts.   Board should consider both options provided by General Counsel and advise Staff 
with further direction on the matter. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
This is a follow-up action item to consider an analysis provided by General Counsel on the issue 
of interest owed by Fund 40, Wastewater to other fund accounts for a past inter-fund loan.  As 
previously reported to Board, original documentation concerning this inter-fund loan is less than 
complete or ideal.  However, Staff and General Counsel has reconstructed known information 
and prepared an analysis of what may be remaining for this matter being completely resolved 
with a final interest payment. 
 
The central question asked by Board Members was, “what is the amount necessary to retire the 
inter-fund loan repayment by Wastewater Fund 40?”  
 
The loan originally was provided in 2006 from Water, Fire and Lighting Fund accounts in the 
amount of $410,000.  The purpose was to fund specific and urgent sewer system facilities.  A 
partial payment of $200,000 was performed in 2014 leaving a balance owed of $234,625 as of 
July 1, 2014.  This was reported to the Board by the former General Manager. 
 
The 2014 audit report does not state the origination date of the loan, or the date of the 2013-14 
repayment or the balance due of $234,625.  If the Board assumed a worst case scenario for 
repayment, then applying the LAIF rate on January 1 2006 with a $200,000 payment on or about 
June 30 2014 the amounts owed would be:  $278,610.80 on June 30 2014 which would result in 
a retirement amount of $70,067.93 for debt retirement. 
 
The Board, at its February 25, 2016 meeting authorized a transfer of $210,000 toward retiring 
this outstanding debt.  District General Counsel is reporting an analysis of interest necessary to 
retire this debt based on calculated interest owed.  Counsel calculates an interest owed based on 



 

Page 2 of 2 
Item XII 23 

 Board of Directors April 28 2016 
 

LAIF (Local Agency Investment Fund) rates for funds on deposit.  Historically LAIF interest 
rates have ranged from 0.244% to 0.506%.   
 
Assuming the balance owed on July 1, 2014 was $234,625 then the following applies: 
 
 Date    Amount Owed 
 July 1 2014   $234,625.00 
 July 1 2015   $235,254.76 
 February 1 2016  $235,757.90 
 February 25 2016  $210,000.00 repayment approved and transferred 
 April 1 2016   $25,778.77 
 April 28 2016   $25,789.94 (if Board determines action to be taken.) 
 
The April 2016 LAIF rate is 0.520%.  If the Board elects to complete debt retirement at this 
meeting then the amount to be transferred is $25,789.94, not $25,778.77. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The fiscal impact is either $25,789.94 or $70, 067.93 based on which optional calculation that 
the Board determines is necessary.   Staff believes the $25,789.94 is appropriate and supported 
by this analysis.   
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board review and discuss this analysis and determine that adoption of 
the amount of $234,625.00, as contained in 2014 audit report as used at the time of the 
$210,000.00 transfer repayment and an interest owed payment of $25,789.94 is appropriate and 
necessary for completing debt retirement.  Staff also recommends the immediate transfer of these 
funds from Wastewater Capital Reserves with distribution to Fire, Lighting and Water Capital 
Reserves.  
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY:    
  
Karl SchweikertKarl SchweikertKarl SchweikertKarl Schweikert                    Darrell W. GentryDarrell W. GentryDarrell W. GentryDarrell W. Gentry    
District General Counsel    General Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Page 1 of 1 
 

 
San Miguel Community Services District 

Board of Directors  
 

Staff Report 
 
April 28, 2016                                                                 ITEM:  XII 24 
 
SUBJECT: Declaring Hazardous Weeds a Public Nuisance within the San Miguel   
  Community Services District 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve and adopt Resolution No 2016-19 
declaring hazardous weeds a public nuisance and direct staff to proceed with mailing notices to 
abate.  

DISCUSSION: 
District Fire Department conducts a weed abatement program in order to reduce fuel load and 
eliminate fire hazards, pursuant to the authority contained in Government Code Section 61100(t) 
and Health and Safety Code Sections 14875 et seq... Abatement is initiated by resolution 
adoption declaring weeds on identified properties as a public nuisance.   Annually, the Fire 
Department inspects all parcels within its service boundaries for compliance with its weed 
abatement program. The parcels listed in Exhibit “A” in the attached Resolution were determined 
to be non-compliant thereon are deemed a public nuisance. 
 
A formal notice is sent to property owners following adoption of the attached Resolution. In 
accordance with the comprehensive weed abatement procedures set forth in the Health and 
Safety Code, a public hearing is scheduled for May 28th, 2015, to consider any objections by 
affected property owners. All parcels not corrected shall be placed on a list for abatement.  Costs 
of abatement plus administrative expenses are placed as an assessment on each parcel’s property 
tax bill.     
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. The costs of abatement are paid by the affected property owner.  Administrative expenses 
are recovered by imposing a service charge.  
 
Prepared by:       Approved by: 
              
Rob Roberson,                 Darrell W. Gentry 
Fire Chief       General Manager 
 
Attachment: Resolution No. 2016-19  



APN Street Legal Est. Acres Avg. Slope

027-251-004 08742   MAGDALENA DR SAN LAWR TER PTN LT 46 1.13 2

027-251-019 09510   RIVER RD SAN LAWR TER LT 48 2.05 2

027-221-058 03495   SAN PABLO LN SAN LAW TER PTN LT 27 1.66 8

027-221-003 08705   MISSION LN SAN LAWR TER TR PTN LT 27 0.95 10

021-241-032 00000   12TH ST PM 31/82 PTN PAR B & T25S R12E PTN SEC 16 0.39 4

021-401-001 00620   12TH ST T25S R12E SEC 16         PTN SW 1/4 OF SW 1/4 2.71 2

021-241-028 00675   12TH ST PM 31/82 PTN PAR B 2.33 2

021-241-018 0 TN SAN MIG T25S R12E     PTN SEC 16 0.41 1

021-231-033 00000   12TH ST PTN ABD RD 0.01 1

021-231-028 00000   12TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 73 PTN LTS 15 & 16 0.03 1

021-231-032 00000   N ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 73 PTN LTS 1516 & PTN ABD RD 0.04 1

021-231-017 00599   12TH ST T25S R12E PTN SEC 16 0.31 1

021-231-041 00000   N ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 73 PTN LTS 10 THRU 14 0.3 1

021-231-024 01222   N ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 73 PTN LTS 10 TO 14 0.48 1

021-231-026 01300   N ST TN SAN MIG               BL 72 LTS 14 & 15 0.26 1

021-231-036 00000   N ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 72 LTS 5 6 & 7 0.34 1

021-231-035 01380   N ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 72 LTS 3 & 4 0.23 1

021-231-005 00590   14TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL T25S R12E  PTN SEC 16 0.66 1

021-241-024  2.47 5

021-241-025  4.73 2

021-195-002 01436   RIO VISTA PL TN SAN MIGUEL TR 32      BL 4 LTS 3 & 4 0.3 6

021-194-020 01435   RIO VIEW PL TR 32 BL 3 LT 11 0.17 4

021-193-014 01415   VERDE PL TN SAN MIGUEL TR 32      BL 2 LTS 10 & 11 0.32 1

021-193-013 00735   RIVER RD TN SAN MIGUEL TR 32      BL 2 LT 7 0.11 2

021-193-016 01470   BONITA PL TN SAN MIGUEL TR 32      BL 2 LT 2 0.16 1

021-193-007 01420   BONITA PL TN SAN MIGUEL TR 32      BL 2 LT 5 0.16 2

021-192-024 01409   BONITA PL PM 76/60-61 PAR 3 0.27 1

021-192-011 01499   BONITA PL TR 32 BL 1 PTN LTS 13&14 0.13 1

021-191-004 01485   PRADO PL T25S R12E PTN SEC 16 0.22 0

021-141-017 00000   N ST BOE 872-40-10J PAR 27 PTN 3.09 1

021-152-046 01520   N ST TN SAN MIGUEL PTN BL 70 & T25S R12E PTN SEC 16 0.14 3

021-152-041 0 TN SAN MIGUEL T25S R12E  PTN SEC 16 0.36 1

021-151-043 00000   16TH ST T25S R12E PTN SEC 16 0.92 2

021-051-022 0 BOE 872-40-10D PAR 19 2.66 2

021-071-010 01833   MISSION ST TN SAN MIG BL 52         LTS 11 & 12 0.14 11

021-071-011 01845   MISSION ST TN SAN MIG BL 52         LTS 9 & 10 0.14 11

021-071-017 01875   MISSION ST TN SAN MIG BL 52  LTS 3 & 4 0.13 11

021-071-015 01887   MISSION ST TN SAN MIG BL 52  LTS 1 & 2 0.12 11

021-091-016 00000   MISSION ST TN SAN MIG PTN OF STREET ADJACENT TO BL 53 0.57 8

021-091-015 01767   MISSION ST TN SAN MIG BL 53 LTS 5 TO 6 0.16 10

021-092-002 00000   17TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 68 & PTN ABD RD 1.28 3

021-112-002 00000   16TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 67 & PTN ABD RD 1.1 2

021-141-011 01480   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL PTN DEPOT  GRDS 0.08 1

021-141-010 01490   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL PTN DEPOT  GRDS 0.08 1

021-141-009 01510   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL PTN DEPOT  GRDS 0.08 1

021-122-012 01599   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 36 LTS 1 TO 3 0.23 3

021-131-006 01540   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 55 PTN LTS 23 & 24 0.1 10

021-131-012 01560   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 55 LTS 25 & 26 0.19 10

021-131-004 01588   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 55 LTS 27 & 28 0.19 9

021-131-025 00340   16TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL PM 53-75 PAR 2 0.17 8

021-131-011 01525   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL PTN BL 55  LESS 75% MIN RTS IN PTN 0.55 2

021-131-023 01599   MISSION ST PM 46/72 PAR 4 & PTN RD 0.15 4

tparent
Typewritten Text

tparent
Typewritten Text
XII.24 (A)

tparent
Typewritten Text



APN Street Legal Est. Acres Avg. Slope

021-171-013 01411   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 56      LT 13 & PTN LT 12 0.11 1

021-171-008 00000   14TH ST TN SAN MIG BL 56         PTN LTS 17 TO 21 0.18 4

APN Street Legal Est. Acres Avg. Slope

021-171-023 00335   14TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 56 PTN LTS 17 TO 21 0.3 5

021-162-013 01470   K ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 35 LTS 27 TO 29 0.24 4

021-162-005 01430   K ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 35 LTS 21 & 22 0.17 5

021-201-004 01343   K ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 25 LTS 9 TO 11 0.18 4

021-211-001 00340   14TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL PTNS       BL 57 LTS 29 TO 32 0.41 3

021-211-016 01383   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 57 LTS 1 TO 5 0.43 1

021-211-012 01337   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 57 LTS 12 TO 16 0.42 1

021-261-019 01225   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 58 LT 14 0.09 1

021-261-020 01215   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 58 LT 15 0.08 1

021-252-004 0 000.60AC BUILDING 0.74 12

021-252-013 01235   L ST TN SAN MIG BL 33         LTS 12 TO 14 0.28 12

021-252-006 01201   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 33 LOTS 15 & 16 0.19 12

021-252-009 00249   12TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 33      E 1/2 LTS 17 TO 21 0.24 7

021-221-013 00000   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL   PTN DEPOT GRDS 0.08 1

021-281-011 00000   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 59 LT 7 0.09 2

021-281-013 01125   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 59 LOTS 11 TO 14 0.37 2

021-281-014 01111   MISSION ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 59 LOTS 15 & 16 0.17 4

021-302-006 01071   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 31 LTS 1 TO 4 0.42 7

021-311-003 01042   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL BL 60      LTS 22 & 23 0.18 1

021-302-010 0 TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 31 LTS 10 TO 12 0.3 7

021-302-008 01010   L ST TN SAN MIG BL 31         LTS 13 TO 16 LESS 50% MR 0.38 9

021-302-016 01040   K ST TN SAN MIG BL 31         LTS 22 TO 24 0.27 7

021-301-004 00000   K ST TN SAN MIG               BL 28 PTN LTS 7 TO 16 0.08 6

021-331-019 00000   MISSION ST MCD ADD BL 61 LT 45PTN LT 3 & PTN ABD RD 0.28 1

021-331-001 00000   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL            BL 61 LTS 30 TO 32 0.28 3

021-331-034 00968   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL MC D ADD BL 61 LTS 23 THUR 24 0.19 2

021-322-014 00947   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL MCD ADD  BL 30 LTS 10 & 11 0.2 7

021-322-015 00939   L ST TN SAN MIGUEL MCD ADD BL 30 LTS 1213& N 1/2 LT 14 0.29 7

021-322-004 00972   K ST TN SAN MIGUEL T25S R12E  PTN SEC 20 0.75 6

021-371-002 00777   MONTEREY RD T25S R12E SEC 20 PTN 1.72 6

021-371-003 00000   MONTEREY RD T25S R12E PTN SEC 20 0.23 10

021-371-005 0 T25S R12E PTN SEC 20 0.28 10

021-323-004 00252   9TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL T25S R12E  PTN SEC 20 0.68 4

021-323-001 00238   9TH ST TN SAN MIGUEL MC D ADD   BL 77 PTN LTS 1 TO 5 0.23 8



RESOLUTION NO.  2016-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DECLARING HAZARDOUS WEEDS A PUBLIC NUISANCE 

WITHIN THE SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the San Miguel Community Services District (“District”) is a duly formed 
Community Services District under Government Code Section 61100(t), and has the power to 
provide protection against fire and risks of fire; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority established in Health and Safety Code Section 
14875, et seq., the District may declare hazardous weeds a public nuisance for the purposes of 
proceeding with a weed abatement program; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors finds that it is in the public interest that 
hazardous weeds within the District be abated as an aid to fire prevention.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel 
Community Services District as follows: 
 

Section 1. That the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
 

Section 2.  That the weeds located on the private properties described in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, all of which are located within the 
District, are hereby declared to be a public nuisance. 
 

Section 3.  In accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 14890, the District 
Fire Chief is hereby designated as the person to give the notice, substantially in the form 
proscribed by Health and Safety Code Section 14892, to destroy, modify, abate and remove such 
hazardous weeds. 
 

Section 4. That said nuisance, unless otherwise corrected, shall be abated by the 
District, and the cost thereof shall be assessed upon the parcels from which said nuisance is 
abated. 
 

Section 5.  That a public hearing shall be held on the proposed abatement of 
hazardous weeds on May 26th at 7:00 p.m. at the following address: 1150 Mission Street, San 
Miguel California, 93451, to provide an opportunity for all property owners having any 
objections to the proposed removal of such weeds to be heard and given due consideration. 
 

Section 6. That the District Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to mail notice of 
said hearing to the property owners described in Exhibit “A” as their names and addresses appear 
from the last equalized assessment roll as authorized by Health and Safety Code Section 14896.  

 



On the motion of Director ________________, seconded by Director __________, and 
on the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES:   
NOES:    
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING:  

 
the foregoing Resolution is hereby passed and adopted this 28th day of April, 2016. 
 

 

_____________________________________ 
John Green, President 
Board of Directors 
San Miguel Community Services District 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Darrell W. Gentry, General Manager 
and Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
 
______________________________ 
 
 
 


